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Values of BPC

Integrity, mutual respect for each other, 
professionalism, accountability, care and  
“Tha Dhamtse”. 



Our Vision 

“To be the best electric utility in the region 
committed to quality services, maximization 
of value, and sustainable socio-economic 
development”

Our Mission

To Transmit, Distribute and Supply Electricity within 
the Country, wheel Electricity for Export, and 
Practice Good Corporate Governance.
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Introduction 

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Bhutan 
Power Corporation Limited, I have the privilege 
to present this report on the performance of 
Company for the period covering 1st January 
2013 to 31st December 2013 to Druk Holding and 
Investments Ltd. (DHI), the sole Shareholder, 
and to the other relevant stakeholders. 

System Performance

The domestic electricity demand has been 
growing steadily over the years keeping pace 
with the growth in the economic activities 
of the country. The peak demand today has 
reached to 314 MW as compared to 284 MW 
in the previous year. During the year 14,802 
customers were added and BPC today services 
146,497 customers. The addition has been 
mostly through service connection of the rural 
homes in the country side brought about by 
extensive Rural Electrification coverage made 
by the Company. 

To meet the domestic consumption demand 
of power, 1,901.7266 Million Units (MU) of 
energy were purchased from Druk Green 
Power Corporation Limited (DGPC) during the 
year.  Of the total purchases, royalty energy 
accounted for 1,116.0281MU. The internal 
generation from embedded mini and micro 
hydels owned by the company was 18.446 MU 
in 2013.
            
The total sale for the year was 1,841.4657 MU 
as compared to 1,769.59 MU in the previous 
year reflecting a growth of about 4.1% over 
the previous year. The energy wheeled by 

BPC for export to India for DGPC increased to 
5,557.62726 MU from 5,273.100 MU in 2012. 

On the System Performance, BPC has been 
able to maintain its system losses within the 
lower limit comparable within the region. Of 
the total energy of 7,481.868 MU received by 
the system during the year, 7,399.092 MU was 
the total utilization of energy (internal sales 
including wheeling).  This translates the global 
energy loss for the year to 1.11% as compared 
to 1.18% in 2012. The domestic T&D loss for the 
period is 4.30% and for the previous year the 
loss was 4.32%. The improvement in the loss is 
due to timely preventive, planned maintenance 
and up-gradation of the network system. 

The load flow within the system is monitored 
by the National Load Dispatch Center, which 
has been in operation since 2012. The Center 
monitors the power systems operation online 
for carrying out effective dispatching of load 
and coordination with generating plants of 
DGPC and the Indian Eastern Region Load 
Dispatch Center at Kolkatta.

Financial Reports

The financial reporting of the company has 
undergone a significant change from this year 
with the adoption of the Bhutanese Accounting 
Standards (BAS). I am happy to report that 
the Company has adopted all the required 
Bhutanese Accounting Standards Phase I 
from the first year of its implementation. With 
the convergence of the reporting system of the 
company to the BAS, a significant milestone 
has been achieved making the BPC’s reporting 
system comparable to the International 
Financial Reporting Standards. 

Director’s Report
Director’s Report on the Performance of Bhutan Power Corporation Limited for the 
year 2013
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Auditors’ Report

While the Auditors had made no adverse 
comments on the audit report of the year, 
emphasis of matter has been drawn on the 
advance of Nu 400 million paid out of the Group 
Investment Reserve to the Shareholder during 
the year. 

They have observed certain internal control 
weaknesses and improvements required to 
be made in the area of asset and inventory 
management. The auditors have also observed 
instances of certain compliance failure. I assure 
that the company will address the weakness in 
internal control system and compliance issues 
during the year.

I am also happy to report that the qualifications 
in the Audit report of 2012 have been resolved 
during the year.   
 
Assets

The asset of the company stands at Nu 
27,851.588 million as compared to Nu 24,084.85 
million as on December 31, 2012. The net 

worth of the company today is Nu 21,789.948 
million as compared to Nu 18,364.391 million 
in December 31, 2012. 
          
Borrowings 

The Company has not taken additional 
borrowing during the year to finance the 
capital investments except for the soft loans 
provided by the Royal Government of Bhutan 
for financing rural electrification works.  These 
soft borrowings are made available on behalf 
of the Royal Government of Bhutan to BPC by 
the Asian Development Bank (ADB), the Japan 
International Cooperation Agency (JICA) and 
the Austrian Federal Government (ADA).  
During the year, BPC has drawn Nu 169.243 
million from JICA, Nu 119.360 million from 
ADB, and 249.327 million from ADA totaling 
to Nu 537.930 million during the year. For the 
previous year, the total borrowings were Nu 
1,071.683 million. The principal repayment of 
Nu 196.756 million has been made during the 
year for the existing borrowings and the total 
borrowings portfolio stands at Nu 6,061.639 
million for the period.          
         

Headloading en-route Ngadala
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Government Grants 

The Company received capital grant of Nu 
11.212 million during the year for executing 
rural electrification works. 

Funds for Deposit Contract Works 

BPC executes works for construction of Power 
Transmission Lines for Punatshangchhu Hydro 
Electric Project Authority I & II (PHPA-1 and 
II) and Mangdechu Hydro Electric Project 
Authority (MHPA) for evacuation of power 
from the generating plants under construction.  
For these said works, BPC has received Nu 
1,249.445 million, Nu 348.887 million and 
Nu 961.957 million respectively from the 
Hydropower Project Authorities during the year.    

For the implementation of All Dielectric 
Self Supporting (ADSS) Project funded by 
Department of Information and Technology, 
Ministry of Communications for providing 
ICT connectivity infrastructures over power 
distribution lines to the various Community 
e-centres (Ce-C) in each gewog, we received 
Nu 24.44 million during the year. 

Revenue

Gross revenue of Nu 6,420.292 million has 
been earned during the year as compared to 
Nu 6,284.090 million in the previous year. The 
overall revenue has grown marginally by about 
2.2%.  The revenue from electricity sale grew 
by 7.9% from Nu 3,103.37 million in 2012 to 
Nu 3,346.62 million in 2013. The revenue from 
wheeling of power increased to Nu 623.43 
from Nu 548.17 million in 2012.  Other revenue 
earned for the period is Nu 447.11 million as 
compared to Nu 495.20 million in 2012

The average tariff for the year is Nu 1.808 per 
kWh as compared to Nu 1.732 per kWh in 2012.

Operating Expenditure 

Total expense for the year is Nu 5,047.84 
million as compared to Nu 5,018.97 million in 

the previous year, which included expenses 
on purchase of power, finance costs and 
depreciation.  

Profit, Tax and Dividend

BPC made a net profit after tax of Nu 963.273 
million for the year as against Nu 898.32million 
in 2012. The provisionally self-assessed tax for 
the year is Nu 409.182 million of which Nu 57.55 
million is treated as deferred tax expenses. 

The Board of Directors proposes of dividend of 
Nu 260.08 million for the year and transfer of Nu 
510.54 million to Group Investment Reserve.  
The Board also proposes to set aside Nu 5.04 
million as Insurance Reserve.  

Capital Investment 

During the year, Nu 1,570.21 was invested in 
capital investment for network expansion and 
for augmenting and improving the ageing grid 
network. This investment represents 1.6 times 
of the Profit after tax of the current year before 
dividend.  During the year asset worth about 
Nu 1,259 million has been added mostly on the 
distribution network system. 

On financing these capital works, BPC has 
been able to meet its capital commitments 
for system up-gradation works from its own 
operating activities while the work for Rural 
Electrification Project has been financed 
through soft borrowings scheme and grant 
from the Royal Government of Bhutan. 
                    
For the construction contract works of building 
associated transmission system (ATS) for 
Punatsangchhu Hydroelectric Projects I and II, 
the Mangdechu Hydroelectric Project and All 
Dielectric Self Supporting (ADSS) Project, the 
Corporation spent Nu 2,685.16 million. 

Power System Expansion Programs

I would like to report on the status of the major 
ongoing works of the power system expansion 
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works and the new initiatives taken during the 
year since these works are critical for building 
a reliable network system.  

The works on the construction of 220 kV 
Double circuit Malbase – Samtse Transmission 
Line and construction of 66 kV Double circuit 
Samtse–Gomtu and Samtse–Sipsu Lines 
have been delayed due to Right of Way issues 
beyond the control of the Company. With the 
issues resolved, now the works will be executed 
without any further delay. 

The 220kV substations at Tsirang and Jigmiling 
have been commissioned and charged during 
the year. With the commissioning of these inter-
connecting Substations and the associated 
220/132 kV transmission lines already built & 
commissioned, the East-West link has been 
established for providing reliable power supply 
through exchange of energy between Western 
and Eastern grids of Bhutan.  

The work for supply and construction of 220/66 
kV substation at Dhamdum, Samtse and bay 
extension at Malbase and Gomtu substations 
was awarded during the year at a total cost of 
Nu 410.317 million.

For the year 2014, the construction of following 
new Transmission lines shall be initiated:  

i.	 Construction of 66 kV Single Circuit 
Transmission Line from Thimphu to 
Gasa.

ii.	 Construction of 132 kV transmission 
line from Motanga to Phuntshothang 
and from Kanglung to Phuntshothang.

I am also happy to report that the company made 
a good progress on construction of Associated 
Transmission lines for the Mega Hydroelectric 
Projects as well. The works for the construction 
of 132 kV Yurmoo substation at Trongsa and 
associated 33 kV distribution scheme for 
construction power supply to Mangdechhu 
HEP has been completed and power supply is 
made available to all the construction sites of 
the MHPA. The construction of Pothead Yard 

for Dagachu Hydro Power Corporation (DHPC) 
Limited (DHPCL) was completed and handed 
over to DHPC. The 220 kV transmission line 
for evacuation of 126 MW Dagachhu power 
was completed two years back. The contract 
works of building the ADSS- Phase II Network 
for ICT connectivity of remaining 70 Geogs is 
progressing and will be completed in 2014. The 
PHPA-I and MHPA Transmission Lines works 
are also in progress as per revised schedule. 

The work for supply and construction of 400 kV 
Double Circuit Transmission Line from pothead 
yard of Punatsangchhu II Hydro Electric Project 
to Jigmeling will be awarded in 2014.
In executing the National Grid Network 
infrastructure development works, the 
Engineering and Design Services of BPC 
is providing in-house technical services on 
the engineering and design aspects of all its 
transmission and distribution projects up to the 
220 kV level. For the 400 kV Punatsangchhu-I 
and II Associated Transmission Line Project 
and Mangdechhu Line Project, the consultancy 
services are provided by the Power Grid 
Corporation of India Limited and WAPCOS 
India Limited respectively. 

Rural Electrification (RE)

BPC was entrusted with a mandate to provide 
electricity for all by 2013 in the 10th Five Year 
Plan (FYP) with a total of 40,257 households to 
be electrified through on-grid supply scheme. 
Despite best efforts, BPC could fulfill only 94% 
of the targets due to major challenges faced 
during the implementation of the RE works. 
One of the major challenges faced was the 
inaccessibility of work sites in the last mile 
connectivity wherein the transportation of 
materials has been the single most challenge. 
This was coupled with harsh climatic conditions 
and difficult geographical terrain resulting in 
severe working conditions, thereby making 
it difficult to get laborers and also retain the 
existing workers to work at the site.  In some 
cases, BPC lacked support from the community, 
which further delayed the progress of RE work. 
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Despite all these challenges, I am proud 
to report that BPC has electrified 37,654 
households under the various RE programs 
including 5,782 households under the Fill-in 
RE project financed by the BPC during the 
plan period. With this RE coverage, 94% of 
the rural homes have grid supply access.  For 
the balance households not electrified, BPC is 
putting all its efforts to complete the works as 
soon as possible to enhance the quality of life 
and living conditions in our countryside. 

Net work reliability

We recognize reliability of power supply as 
the key indicator for customer services. Our 
System Average Interruption Duration Index 
(SAIDI) performance was 0.146 minutes at 
the Transmission level and 2.799 hours at the 
distribution level. 

System Improvement works

BPC carries out extensive system augmentation 
works not only to improve system reliability but 
also to reduce the loss reduction every year. At 

the low voltage level, all the bare Low Voltage 
(LV) conductors that have either lived their 
life and/or needed up-gradation are replaced 
by Arial Bunched Conductors (ABC). Further, 
the overhead bare conductors are also being 
replaced depending on the load growth with 
an aim to replace the lowest sized squirrel 
conductor and for environment protection from 
likely electric fire hazards.

In the Urban areas, besides the numerous 
small up-gradation works that were being 
taken up, the large improvement works carried 
out includes the underground cabling works at 
lower market, main area of Samdrup Jongkhar 
town which will be commissioned in early 
2014.  The construction of 2.5 MVA 33/11/ kV 
substation at Bumthang and Ha municipal area 
has been commissioned during the year and 
the work at Sarpang will be commissioned 
in early 2014. The 33 kV State of Art GIS 
Substation at Diesel Power House at Thimpu 
has been commissioned during the year and 
the Babesa Substation work is progressing as 
per schedule and will be commissioned by mid 
2014. 

Some of the RE sites of Jigmecholing 
under Sarpang Dzongkhag
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At the Transmission level, some of the major 
improvement works carried out were the 
replacement of old Chukha days’ 11 kV SF6 
Circuit Breakers at Semtokha with  new 11 kV 
Vacuum Circuit Breakers, commissioning of 5 
MVA transformer at Nangkhor substation and  
re-location of KP 20 and KP 21 towers on the 
Kuirchu-Pemagatshel 132kV transmission line 
route. 

Corporate Strategic Plan

BPC has taken a step during the year to build 
a roadmap for future by revising its Corporate 
Strategic Plan to guide the Corporation in the 
next 5 years. Series of consultation meetings 
and expert opinions were sought and gathered 
to bring about final Corporate Strategic Plan. 
The shift in the thinking process has been to 
introduce the “Balanced Scorecard” techniques 
to strategize and initiate result oriented targets. 
The plan is in the final stage and will be ready 
for implementation from 2014 onwards.
  
In this connection we would also like to take this 
opportunity to report to the Shareholder that on 
the Futuristic Plans & Initiatives that BPC has 
started working on:

(a)	 Feasibility study to form a transmission 
construction company in a phased 
manner. We think there is an opportunity 
for National capacity building , & local 
resources and expertise mobilization : 

(i)	 Profit center of BPC to start with;
(ii)	 Subsidiary of DHI/BPC with private 

26% & public share holding;
(iii)	 Independent Transmission 

& Distribution Company by 
divesting & roll out – release the 
handholding!)

In this connection, it is also learnt that MoEA, 
RGoB is considering ADB TA study on the 
bifurcation of BPC T&D.
  
(b)	 Formulation of Smart Grid Master Plan 

for futuristic technology deployment to 
adopt “state of art” protection, control & 
management functions and to bring about 
operational efficiencies in grid asset 
utilization (generation, transmission, 
distribution, communication) through 
synergy/integration with ICT. Smart grid 
concept and its opportunity values have 
to be made aware to the Policy and 
Regulatory bodies to drive the initiative 
forward. EV is one technology which needs 
to be integrated with grid infrastructures 
for sustainable deployment. 

 
(c)	 BPC Board and Management would like 

to submit and propose to the Shareholder 
to consider allowing atleast 1% of the 
PAT towards R&D budget (Strategy-
ex) to support futuristic initiatives and 
innovations in BPC.   

Human Resources Management Initiatives

The company attaches high priority in 
developing its human resources and capacity 
building. Against the targeted 10,000 training 
man-days for the year, a total of 18,395 person 
days including short term training program and 
long term training program was achieved. As on 
31/12/2013, there were 7 employees studying 

Damaged Conductor due to lightening stike 
at TKS028           
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abroad, 2 pursuing the Bachelors Degree 
program and 8 pursuing advanced diploma. 
During the same period 7 completed Masters 
degree and 3 completed Bachelors degree 
courses and joined the Company.

Further, following initiatives have been taken 
during the year to improve the employee 
productivity and morale. 

The development of HRAD Master Plan has 
been initiated which is on the final stage of 
formulation.  Once finalized, the HR Master 
plan shall set the strategy direction and provide 
guidance in human resources planning and 
development in BPC.

Sports and Recreation Policy has been 
developed and put in place with an intention to 
provide equal opportunities to all employees to 
participate in sports and recreational activities 
conducted within and outside the Company, 
recognizing sports and recreation as one of the 
activities which will have far reaching personal, 
social and environmental benefits.

Employee Grievance Redressal system has 
been introduced to enable the employees to 
submit their grievance. An appropriate Policy 
is under formulation stage.  Suitable redressal 
actions shall be taken by the Committee 
formed at Regional and Corporate Head Office 
once the policy guidelines are approved and 
circulated.

The company has recruited 80 employees in 
various positions during the year and in the 
same period more than 76 employees were 
separated from BPC services. To improve the 
recruitment process, HRAD in collaboration 
with IT Division has introduced Online Job 
Application system to facilitate applicants 
from far off places without having to come to 
BPC Head Office. This initiative is expected to 
reduce the paper work in future.

It is also a great honour to report that on 17th 
December 2013, 1,015 employees of BPC were 
awarded “The Civil Service Award” for their 

dedicated services from His Majesty the Druk 
Gyalpo.  42 employees received Gold Medals, 
278 employees received Silver Medals, 691 
employees were awarded Bronze Medals and 
4 employees received Lifetime Achievement 
Awards.

Corporate Governance

To enhance the good governance and to 
provide strategic guidance to the company 
eight numbers of Board meetings were held. 
The Annual General Meeting for the year 
2012was held on 6th April 2013.  Three Board 
Human Resource Committee and three Board 
Audit Committee meetings were also held 
during the year. 

Besides, a number of Board Tender Committee 
meetings were held regularly to decide and 
finalize on the procurement of goods, services 
and works. 

In all the meetings, the quorum as required 
was duly maintained and all the Hon’ble Board 
of Directors declared no conflict of interest in 
each of these meetings.

Monitoring of Performance

The performance of both financial and non-
financial aspects of the company is managed 

Maintenance Work at SW35 at Docula
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and monitored through signing of the Compact 
with DHI and through the Performance 
Based Incentive system (PBIS) which is the 
management tool of monitoring performance at 
all levels.

Compact Signed with DHI

The corporation has achieved all the key targets 
and the overall achievement of BPC with respect 
to Compact targets is 97.86% as compared to 
the achievement of 96.68% in 2012. 

Performance Based Incentive System (PBIS) 
Achievement

The Corporation has achieved all the key targets 
set for the year and the overall achievement of 
the company for the year increased to 98.75% 
as compared to 96.75 % in the previous year. 

Corporate Social Responsibility and 
subscription to the Philosophy of Gross 
National Happiness (GNH)

BPC upholds the mainstream principles of 
GNH. Our main contribution towards this cause 
comes from lighting the rural homes, which 
uplifts the socio economic condition of rural and 
semi-rural areas of the Country. I am proud and 
happy to report that BPC has made a significant 
progress and today more than 97 % of the 
Bhutanese homes all over the country have 
access to grid electricity supply as compared to 
89 % in the previous year.

The corporation also supported through 
monetary contributions the needy individuals, 
various religious bodies, and other institutions 
in line with its Donation Policy during the year.  
A total amount of Nu 0.768 million was paid 
during the year for the purpose. 

Newly commissioned 220/132 kV Jigmeling substation
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Challenges

Some of the issues that have posed a challenge 
in our drive to expand the network system and 
to provide uninterrupted and reliable power 
supply to its customers are: 

a.	 Right of ways and clearance issues for 
new constructions; 

b.	 Shifting and relocating of the existing lines 
at all voltage levels;

c.	 Disruption in the supply in the vast grid 
network of power system due to force 

majeure conditions (wind, storm, thunder/
lightning, snow, rain and sometimes man-
made).    

On the human resource front, the challenge is in 
retaining experienced employees and living up 
to their expectations which has resulted in high 
employee attrition rate over the past few years 
despite efforts by the Management to motivate 
their morale and improve their productivity by 
engaging them in trainings, and in innovations 
and special initiatives for professional career 
development and job satisfaction.  
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Our Profile

Bhutan Power Corporation Limited (BPC) 
was formed as an offshoot of the erstwhile 
Department of Power, Ministry of Trade & 
Industry and was launched as a public utility 
company on 1st July 2002 with an objective that 
the corporatization of the utility functions would 
lead to greater efficiency and better delivery of 
electricity supply services in the power sector. 

Today, the ownership of the Bhutan Power 
Corporation Limited (BPC) is transferred to the 
Druk Holding and Investments Limited (DHI) by 
the Royal Government of Bhutan for strategic 
management of state owned enterprises.  

Our Purpose 

BPC builds, owns, operates and maintains the 
entire electrical transmission and distribution 
network in the country including 19 mini and 
micro hydropower plants. Besides sale of 
electricity to customers within the country, 
BPC is responsible for “wheeling” of power 
over its transmission lines from the large 
hydropower plants owned by the Druk Green 
Power Corporation (DGPC) for export to India. 
BPC has also been entrusted with the task of 
100% electrification of the country through 
implementation of Rural Electrification (RE) 
projects and power grid expansion to provide 
growing electricity demand of industries, 
commercial, institutional and residential 
customers all over the country. BPC is also 
licensed to build ICT connectivity infrastructures 
such as OPGW and ADSS over power lines to 
provide not only electricity supply services but 
also facilitate bulk communication of digital 
data, information and voice in the country. BPC, 
is thus a provider of the “wire” services for both 
electricity supply as well as ICT.    

With the Royal Government’s vision of developing 
10,000 MW of hydropower capacity by 2020, 
BPC has also been mandated to construct the 
associated transmission system (ATS) including 
400 kV lines and interconnecting power pooling 
substations required for evacuation of power 
from these mega hydropower plants upto the 
Bhutan-India border. 

Our Vision 

“To be the best electric utility in the region 
committed to quality services, maximization 
of value, and sustainable socio-economic 
development”

Our Mission

To Transmit, Distribute and Supply Electricity 
within the Country, wheel Electricity for Export, 
and Practice Good Corporate Governance.

Our Value 

Integrity, mutual respect for each other, 
professionalism, accountability, care and  “Tha 
Dhamtse”. 

Our Network 

The BPC Grid network covers the whole 
Country. The oldest system was established 
since mid Sixties and in Seventies with the 
commissioning of the mini hydel generation 
plants in each district headquarter. Most of the

old assets are now being replaced. While 
our present network system is fairly new, 
maintaining the vast grided network of assets 
remains a challenge especially those in the 
periphery of the country. The overview of the 

Company Profile
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company’s network system is detailed below:

Transmission 
system (66 kV 
upto 400 kV 

Distribution 
system (400/230 

V upto 33 kV
Total

Overhead lines 1,014.296 km 11,717.16 km 12,731.46 km

Underground cables 6.02 km 419.14 km 425.16 km

Transmission Towers 3,039 Towers - 3,039 Towers

Transformer capacities 949.50 MVA 481.752 MVA 1,431.25 MVA

Number of Transformers 87 Numbers 3,948 Numbers 4,035 Numbers

Generation Capacity (Diesel) 8,238 kVA

Generation Capacity ( small hydro) 6680 kW

Total Generation Capacity 14,094 kW

Total energy purchased (2013) 1,901.73 GWh

Total Energy sold (2013) 1,841.466 GWh

Total Energy wheeled (2013) 5,557.63 GWh

Total energy generated (2013) 18.46 GWh

 Peak Domestic Demand 313.94 MW

Customer Connections

(i) Residential 145,724

(ii) LV Bulk 710

(iii MV 47

(iv) HV 16

Losses

(i) Global Loss 4.30%

(ii) Distribution Loss 8.02%

(iii)Transmission Loss 0.72%

SAIDI 2.799 hours

SAIFI 2.181 

CAIDI 1.28 hours  

Customer Service 

Customer care and delivery of services is in the forefront of our initiatives. The customer care is 
managed by multi-task employees through our service centers located near the customer premises. 
Customer complaints are handled through a centralized Contact Center located in Thimphu. The 
center has recorded 83,807customer calls during the year (March to December).  The customer 
complaint mostly included; No supply complaint whenever there is no electricity in their premises, 
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BPC 

Employees
On BPC 

Contract
Other 

Employees
General 
Public

Livestock Total  Total

Year Fatal
Non 
Fatal

Fatal
Non 
Fatal

Fatal
Non 
Fatal

Fatal
Non 
Fatal

Fatal
Non 
Fatal

Fatal
Non 
Fatal

(Fatal 
+ Non 
Fatal)

2012 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 2 2 0 7 3 10

2013 0 1 0 1 0 1 4 0 4 0 8 3 11

All the accidents related to electricity usage were reported to the Bhutan Electricity Authority and work 
accidents to the Department of Labour, Ministry of Labour Human Resources. The accident cases 
were thoroughly investigated by Safety Inspection & Compliance Division and recommendation to 
take corrective actions were made to the concerned Department and Division to avoid recurrence of 
similar accidents. 

Safety Inspection & Compliance Division after 
analyzing the cause and effect of the accidents, 
the lessons learnt from the accident and preventive 
measures to be taken were circulated within BPC 
via e-mail in the form of Accident Bulletin in an effort 
to educate our employees and create awareness 
to the common hazards leading to accidents. With 
these initiatives, we expect the work related hazards 
and incidents related to using the electricity to 
reduce over the years. There were few instances of 
forest fires attributed to electric line fault and arch 
on account of tree/branch touching/falling due to 
wind, storm and/or thunder and lightning.

reasons for disconnection of supply and 
verification of outstanding bills. 
The average time taken by the call center 
to respond to the customer ranged from 45 
seconds to one minute. The agent generally 
took a longer time to respond to queries related 
to outstanding bill. The time taken by the field 
people to attend to the complaint is not being 
recorded at the moment in the system. 
Our customer satisfaction index (CSI) was 3.79 
out of 5 for the year 2013 based on third party 
survey result. 

New Connections 

14,802 customers were added to the network 
system during the year 2013. 

Safety 

With the increasing network system, safety 
issue for our employees as well as the public at 
large from the usage of electricity has become 
a concern.  We continually strive to improve our 
safety standards through development of proper 
safety process, creating safety awareness 
campaigns to the public, continuous monitoring 
of adherence to the safety standards. Inspite of 
these initiatives, we continue to have accidents 
in our work environment and those using 
electricity.  

Constructed RE lines at Serthi
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Compliance 

No breach of the GRID code or serious breaches 
of the safety standards was recorded during the 
year. The Regulator has also not observed any 
non compliance during the year.

Our People

We recognize human asset as key to our 
performance achievements and delivery 
outputs. We work hard towards attracting 
and retaining quality people and provide 
them with an opportunity for professional 
career development through trainings and 
higher studies. BPC encourages employees’ 
innovation efforts and initiatives to bring about 
out changes, efficiencies and improvements 
in practices & processes for delivery of quality 
services.  We have also mutual respect for each 
other. 

As a part of corporate policy, Organization 
Climate Survey was conducted with an 

objective of finding out the actual organization 
climate of the employees, assess their 
satisfaction and determine their engagement 
level. The Organization Climate Index for the 
year was 3.66 which is between fair and good 
but is above satisfactory level. The index has 
decreased in comparison to the previous year. 
BPC has also started a system of merit award 
of employees and team works’ recognition of 
best performance achievements.    

Employee Statistics 

(i) Engineers 182

(ii) Others 1,993 

Total 2,175 

Composition of work force 

Male 1,771 

Female 404 

Recruited during the year 75 

Separated during the year 68 

ACSR conductor being transported manually
 at Lauri RE site   
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Financial Performance

i.	 Annual turnover for 2013 was Nu 6,420.292 
million representing an overall growth by 
about 2.2% from the previous year.  

ii.	 The revenue earned from electricity sale 
was Nu 3,346.62 million. 

iii.	 The revenue earned from wheeling was Nu 
623.43 million. 

iv.	 Other revenue earned was Nu 447.11 
million.

v.	 The average tariff for the year was Nu 
1.808 per kWh.

vi.	 Total expense for the year was Nu 5,047.84 
million.

vii.	  Profit after tax for the year was Nu 963.273 
million.

viii.	  Cash flow for the year was positive on Nu 
498.13 million.

ix.	 	Capital investment for the year was Nu 
1,570.21 million.

x.	 Total capital works expenditure (including 
Construction Contract Works ) was Nu 
4,255.38 million 

xi.	 Property, Plant and Equipment at cost 
was Nu 22,071.205 million of which Nu 
4,189.385 million is in Capital Work in 
Progress.

xii.	 The total Share Holders Equity is Nu 
12,273.697 million of which Nu 8,190.191 
is the Paid up capital.

xiii.	 The total debt outstanding for the year was 
Nu 6,061.64 million.

Key Financial Ratios 

Particulars 2013 2012

Fixed Assets Turnover Ratio (Sales/ Average Net Block) 0.486 0.515 

Current Ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 2.415 1.680 

Quick Ratio (Current Asset-Inventory/Current Liabilities) 2.251 1.518 

Interest Coverage Ratio ( Profit before interest & tax/Interest) 9.088 9.434 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio ( PAT+Depreciation+Interest /(Interest + Principal 
Repayment)

5.040 4.865 

Gearing Ratio (Debt/ Net Fixed Asset) 45.0% 44.1%

Debt Equity Ratio ( Debt/average Equity) 50.73% 50.42%

Return on asset (Profit after tax)/average net total assets 7.28% 7.37%

Return on equity ( return available /Average Equity) 8.06% 7.92%
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Auditors Report
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Financial Statement

Note December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012 January 1, 2012

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 5 17,543,536,330 16,717,145,327 15,015,768,078

Intangible assets 6 108,980,532 144,874,863 142,943,443

Investments 7 300,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000

Work in progress- construction contracts 8 4,986,785,003 2,912,449,387 681,780,019

Trade & other receivables 9 12,084,985 25,268,618 38,452,250

Long-term loans and advances 10 575,135,790 688,552,772 605,362,239

Total non-current assets 23,526,522,640 20,788,290,967 16,784,306,029

Current assets

Inventories 11 293,074,902 316,901,931 370,599,277

Work in progress- construction contracts 8 62,849,753 69,198,162 33,801,957

Trade & other receivables 12 137,003,950 91,855,686 182,038,579

Cash and cash equivalents 13 1,285,285,949 787,157,340 2,003,227,202

Short-term loans and advances 14 1,511,040,090 475,753,696 194,993,940

Other current assets 15 1,035,810,745 1,555,700,217 1,576,386,972

Total current assets 4,325,065,389 3,296,567,032 4,361,047,927

Total Assets 27,851,588,029 24,084,857,999 21,145,353,956

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholder’s Equity

Share Capital 16 8,190,191,000 8,178,979,000 7,315,673,000

Additional paid in capital - - 384,917,000

Retained earnings 3,705,358,937 3,057,680,192 3,215,202,517

Capital reserve - - 92,447,000

Group Investment Reserve 405,764,916 231,297,822 -

Transmission System Buy Back Reserve - 174,467,094 -

Insurance Reserve 69,077,037 69,077,037 59,158,007
Accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss) (96,694,566) (87,086,068) -

Total shareholder’s equity 12,273,697,324 11,624,415,077 11,067,397,524

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Statement of Financial Position

As at



26    Annual Report 2013   

Note December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012 January 1, 2012

Borrowings 17 5,864,882,540 5,523,709,705 4,603,326,216

Deferred grants 18 773,535,321 785,480,662 568,555,081
Amounts due to customers for construction 
contracts 8 5,741,987,328 3,190,864,152 2,217,726,951

Employee benefit liabilities 19 337,034,049 316,634,595 221,449,106

Deferred Income Tax  liabilities (net) 20 305,542,154 247,989,811 191,813,272

Other non-current liabilities 21 764,008,953 433,107,098 204,452,078

Total non-current liabilities 13,786,990,345 10,497,786,023 8,007,322,704

Current liabilities

Borrowings 17 196,757,453 196,757,453 154,041,547

Deferred grants 18 16,022,046 15,597,419 7,845,411
Amounts due to customers for construction 
contract 8 144,295,878 210,480,544 482,611,686

Trade & other payables 22 961,922,985 1,040,122,481 773,131,326

Employee benefit liabilities 19 143,690,521 129,779,608 91,584,145

Income tax payable (net of advances) 23 132,625,317 96,076,337 301,321,738

Other current liabilities 24 195,586,160 273,843,057 260,097,875

Total current liabilities 1,790,900,360 1,962,656,899 2,070,633,728

Total liabilities 15,577,890,705 12,460,442,922 10,077,956,432

Total equity and liabilities 27,851,588,029 24,084,857,999 21,145,353,956

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes.

As at



   Annual Report 2013    27     

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended,

Note December 31, 
2013 December 31, 2012

Revenue

Income from sale of electricity 3,346,621,611 3,102,374,534

Income from construction contracts 25 2,210,533,317 2,389,650,831

Wheeling charges 623,431,238 548,171,915

Other income 26 237,704,870 243,897,996

Gain/(loss) on foreign currency fluctuation (net) 2,000,685 (5,141)

Total Revenue      6,420,291,721        6,284,090,135

Expenditure

Purchase of electricity 1,151,658,271 1,158,991,280
Construction material consumed and  sub-contracting 
charges 2,001,129,967 2,172,409,846

Operation and maintenance expenses 27 245,873,638 185,787,094

Employee benefit expenses 28 674,719,437 632,172,035

Finance costs 29 169,690,881 150,001,701

Depreciation and amortization expenses 713,891,421 638,523,255

Other expenses 30 90,872,025 81,089,590

Total Expenditure 5,047,835,640 5,018,974,801

For the year ended
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For the year ended,

Note December 31, 
2013 December 31, 2012

Profit before income tax 1,372,456,081 1,265,115,334

Tax expenses 23

- Current tax 351,630,058 310,620,888

- Deferred tax 57,552,343 56,176,539

Net Profit for the year 963,273,680 898,317,907

Earnings per share (‘EPS’) 31

Basic and Diluted EPS (Nu.) 117.77 116.04

Profit for the year 963,273,680 898,317,907

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Actuarial gains (loss) (9,608,498) (87,086,068)

Total comprehensive income for the year 953,665,182 811,231,839

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes.

For the year ended
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Statement of  Cash Flows

For the year ended

December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities

Profit before income tax 1,372,456,081 1,265,115,334

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 713,891,421 638,523,255

Net loss / (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment 17,181,873 13,942,522

Interest expenses 169,690,881 150,001,701

Interest income (112,629,193) (115,699,840)

Provision for doubtful debts 427,550 3,300,072

Liabilities/provisions no longer required, written back (66,676) (3,046,009)

Amortization of Government grants (15,597,419) (7,845,411)

Operating profit before working capital changes 2,145,354,516 1,944,291,626

Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories 23,827,029 53,697,346
Decrease / (Increase) in Work in progress- construction 
contracts (2,069,266,898) (2,266,065,573)

Decrease / (Increase) in Trade and other receivables (560,405,477) 366,985,890
Increase / (Decrease) in Amounts due to customers for contract 
work 2,484,938,510 701,006,059

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade and other payables 245,223,068 514,263,709

Net cash generated from operating activities before income 
tax 2,269,670,747 1,314,179,058

Income tax paid, net of refunds received (315,081,078) (515,866,289)

Net cash generated from operating activities 1,954,589,670 798,312,769

Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (1,570,212,613) (2,609,747,532)

Receipt/(repayments) of government grants 5,489,749 232,523,000

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 48,642,648 253,973,085

Inter-Corporate deposit to Holding Company (400,000,000) (600,000,000)

Redemption of bank term deposits 567,583,781 51,613,158

Interest received 71,078,768 53,903,710

Net cash generated from investing activities (1,277,417,667) (2,617,734,578)
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For the year ended
December 31, 

2013
December 31, 

2012

Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities

Proceeds from Borrowings 537,930,288 1,117,140,942

Issue of Share Capital 11,212,000 -

Repayment of Borrowings (196,757,453) (154,041,547)

Interest paid (215,833,294) (105,533,160)

Payment of dividend on ordinary shares (315,594,935) (254,214,286.0)

Net cash used in financing activities (179,043,394) 603,351,948

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 498,128,609 (1,216,069,862)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 787,157,340 2,003,227,202

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,285,285,949 787,157,340

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information

Non-cash transactions:  
Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012

Issue of ordinary shares for consideration 
other than cash    - 385,942,000

For the year ended
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Notes to Financial Statements

1.	 General information
Bhutan Power Corporation Limited (‘Company’) 
is a wholly owned subsidiary of Druk Holding 
& Investments (a Royal Government of 
Bhutan undertaking). The Company has 
been incorporated and registered under The 
Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000 
with limited liability. The registered office of the 
Company is located at Thimphu, Bhutan. 

The Company is engaged in supply of electricity 
to the residents of the Kingdom of Bhutan 
and wheeling of electricity from the large 
Hydropower Plants in Bhutan for export to 
India. The Company also carries out business 
of construction of electricity project/ distribution 
network system. 

The Company owns, operates and maintains 
the entire electricity transmission and 
distribution network in the Kingdom of Bhutan 
including 19 Mini and Micro Hydropower Plants. 
Apart from construction of distribution network 
system, the Company is also mandated to 
construct the associated Transmission Lines 
and Substations required for evacuation of 
power from Hydropower Plants to the Bhutan-
India border.

The financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended December 31, 2013 were authorized 
for issue in accordance with the resolution of 
the Board of directors dated April 04, 2014.

2.	 Transition to Bhutan Accounting 
Standards (BAS) 

Till the year ended December 31, 2012, the 
Company prepared its financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) and the provisions of the 
Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000. 

The Ministry of Finance embarked on the 
process of developing Accounting Standards to 
promote high quality financial reporting which 
are consistent with international practices. 
Pursuant to this development, the Ministry 
of Economic Affairs of Royal Government of 
Bhutan has issued the Accounting Standard 
Rules for Companies in Bhutan, 2012, notifying 
the Bhutan Accounting Standards (‘BAS’) to 
be implemented by the Companies in Bhutan 
in three phases (I, II and III) with effect from 
January 1, 2013.  Consequently, the Company 
has followed the BAS notified for implementation 
with effect from January 1, 2013 (Phase-I), in 
preparing the financial statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2013 to the extent as 
applicable to the Company as under. 

No. BAS 
1 BAS 1 Presentation of financial statements
2 BAS 2 Inventories
3 BAS 7 Cash flow statements
4 BAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors 
5 BAS 10 Events after the balance sheet date
6 BAS 11 Construction contracts
7 BAS 12 Income taxes
8 BAS 16 Property, plant and equipment
9 BAS 18 Revenue

10 BAS 20 Accounting for Govt. Grants and Disclosure of Govt. Assistance
11 BAS 21 The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
12 BAS 23 Borrowing costs
13 BAS 24 Related party disclosures
14 BAS 33 Earnings per share
15 BAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
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2.2	 Based on the notification issued by the 
Accounting and Auditing Standards Board 
of Bhutan dated December 13, 2013, 
the Company has prepared its restated 
opening balance sheet as at January 1, 
2012 in accordance with the provisions of 
the aforesaid BAS. Changes in accounting 
policies consequent on adoption of 
above BAS have been accounted for in 
accordance with the transition provisions 
of the respective BAS and in case where 
the specific transition provisions do not 
exist, the change in policy has been 
accounted for retrospectively by restating 
the comparatives. The resultant impact of 
such changes in accounting policies up 
to the transition date has been adjusted 
in the retained earnings as of January 1, 
2012. 

2.3	 Reconciliation of the Company’s 
Statement of Financial Position prepared 
under GAAP and as per BAS as at 
January 1, 2012, and December, 31, 
2012, are presented in Note 37.i and 37.ii 
respectively to the financial statements. 
Reconciliation of the Company’s 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended December 31, 2012 
prepared under GAAP and as per BAS 
is disclosed in Note 37.iii to the financial 
statements. The transition from previous 
GAAP to BAS had no significant impact 
on the Cash Flows for the year ended 
December 31, 2012.

2.3	 The Company has not early adopted 
those paragraphs of BAS which are 
having linkages to BAS which are to be 
implemented under Phase II (with effect 
from January 01, 2016) and Phase III 
(with effect from January 01, 2018). 
These paragraphs would be applied 
when the respective BAS will be adopted. 
However, in the cases where such paras 
have been early adopted the same have 
been disclosed in the respective note/
accounting policy.

3.	 Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies

3.1	 Basis of preparation
	 These financial statements are general 

purpose financial statements that have 
been prepared in accordance and to 
comply with the BAS, the Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles and  the 
relevant provisions of The Companies 
Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan, 2000 
including the Accounting Standard Rules 
for Companies in Bhutan, 2012.   

	  
	 The said financial statements have 

been prepared on the accrual basis 
of accounting with the historical cost 
convention and going concern basis 
except as stated otherwise in the Financial 
Statements. The preparation of the 
Financial Statements requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates and 
judgments. It also requires management 
to exercise judgment in the process of 
applying the Company’s accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of 
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities 
may differ from the estimates. In areas 
involving a higher degree of judgment or 
complexity, or areas where assumptions 
and estimates are significant to the 
financial statements are disclosed in Note 
4.

3.2	 Foreign currency translation
(a)	 Functional and presentation currency
	 Items included in the financial statements 

are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which 
the Company operates referred to as 
the “functional currency”. The functional 
currency and presentation currency of the 
Company is Bhutanese Ngultrum.

(b)	 Transactions and balances
	 Foreign currency transactions are 

translated into the functional currency 
using the exchange rates prevailing at 
the dates of the transactions or valuation 
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where items are re-measured. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses resulting from 
the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation at year-end exchange 
rates of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies 
are recognized in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.

3.3	 Property, plant and equipment
	 The Company has adopted the transitional 

provision available under BAS-16 
‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and has 
elected to continue the carrying value 
existing as at the date of transition i.e. on 
January 1, 2012 as the deemed cost. 

	 The cost of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is recognized as an asset 
if, and only if, it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the 
item will flow to the Company and the cost 
can be measured reliably.

		 Property, plant and equipment are initially 
recognized at cost. The initial cost of 
property, plant and equipment comprises 
its net purchase price after deducting for 
any trade discount and rebates, including 
import duties and non-refundable 
purchase taxes, any directly attributable 
costs of bringing the asset to its working 
condition and location for its intended use. 

		 The cost of self-constructed assets 
includes the borrowing costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of qualifying 
assets (Refer note 3.15 below for 
accounting policy of borrowing cost). 
The cost of self-constructed assets not 
put to use and advances paid towards 
the acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment outstanding at each Statement 
of Financial Position date, are disclosed 
as Capital work-in-progress. 

		 Subsequent to initial recognition, 
property, plant and equipment are stated 

at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any. Subsequent expenditures relating 
to property, plant and equipment is 
capitalized only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with 
these will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

		 Subsequent costs are included in the 
asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a 
separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. The carrying amount of 
the replaced part is derecognized. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
during the financial period in which they 
are incurred.

		 Spare parts and servicing equipments 
are normally treated as inventory and 
expensed as consumed. However, major 
spare parts and stand-by equipments are 
treated as property, plant and equipment 
when they are expected to be used 
during more than one year. Also, where 
the spares parts or servicing equipment 
can only be used in connection with an 
item of property, plant and equipment they 
are accounted for as property, plant and 
equipment.

		 Depreciation on property, plant and 
equipment is computed using the straight 
line method over the estimated useful 
lives. Freehold land is not depreciated 
as it has an unlimited useful life whereas 
leasehold land is depreciated on a straight 
line method over the primary term of the 
lease. 

		 The Company has based on evaluation 
performed by the technical Department, 
established the estimated range of useful 
lives of assets for depreciating its property, 
plant and equipment as follows:  
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Buildings 30 years

Generation Civil works 30 years

Transmission assets 30 years

Distribution assets 30 years

Computer equipment 5 years

Vehicles 6.67 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

 Office equipment 5 years

Significant parts of property, plant and 
equipment which are required to be replaced 
at intervals and have specific useful lives are 
recognized and depreciated separately. 

The useful life, residual value and depreciation 
method are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, 
at least at each Statement of Financial Position 
date to ensure that the method and period of 
depreciation are consistent with the expected 
pattern of economic benefits. Change in the 
estimated useful life, residual value and / or 
depreciation method, if any, is depreciated 
prospectively over the asset’s remaining revised 
useful life.

The cost and the accumulated depreciation for 
property, plant and equipment sold, scrapped, 
retired or otherwise disposed off are eliminated 
from the financial statements and the resulting 
gains and losses are included in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income. 

3.4 	 Intangible assets
Intangible assets include computer software and 
are carried at cost of acquisition/implementation 
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation 
is recognized on a straight line basis over 
the estimated useful life as estimated by the 
management. 

3.5 	 Impairment of assets
The Company assesses at each balance 
sheet date whether there is any indication that 
property, plant and equipment may be impaired 
based on internal or external factors. If any 

such indication exists, the Company estimates 
the recoverable amount of the assets. If the 
carrying amount of asset/cash generating 
unit exceeds the recoverable amount on the 
reporting date, the carrying amount is reduced 
to the recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is measured as the higher of the net 
selling price and the value in use determined 
by the present value of estimated future cash 
flows.

3.6  Income tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current 
period are measured at the amount expected to 
be recoverable  from or payable  to the Income 
tax authority based on the current period’s 
taxable income. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to compute the amount are those that 
are enacted or substantively enacted on the 
reporting date by the Income Tax Authority.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary 
differences at the reporting date between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
 
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for 
all taxable temporary differences except when 
the deferred income tax liability arises from 
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination 
and that, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit 
or loss.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized 
for all deductible temporary differences to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences can be utilized, except 
when the deferred income tax asset relating to 
the deductible temporary difference arises from 
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination 
and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit 
or loss.
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The carrying amount of deferred income tax 
assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the asset to be 
recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are 
measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply to the year when the asset is realized or 
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset 
when there is a legally enforceable right to 
set off current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and the Company intends to settle its 
current tax assets and liabilities on net basis. 
Management evaluates positions taken in 
income tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable income tax regulation is 
subject to interpretation. 

The income tax liabilities are recognized when, 
despite the Company’s belief that its income tax 
return positions are supportable, the Company 
believes, it is more likely than not, based on 
the technical merits, that certain positions may 
not be fully sustained upon review by income 
tax authorities. Benefits from tax positions are 
measured at the single best estimate of the 
most likely outcome. 

At each Statement of Financial Position date, 
the tax positions are reviewed, and to the extent 
that new information becomes available which 
causes the Company to change its judgment 
regarding the adequacy of existing income tax 
liabilities, such changes to income tax liabilities 
are duly recognized in income tax expense in 
the year in which such determination is made. 

Interest and penalties, if any, related to accrued 
liabilities for potential tax assessments are 
included in income tax charge for the year in 
which the assessment is completed.

3.7 	 Investments
Investments primarily meant to be held over long 
term period (i.e. for more than 12 months from 
date of acquisition) are valued at cost. Provision 
is made when in the opinion of the management 
there is a decline, other than temporary, in the 
carrying value of such investments. Current 
investments are stated at the lower of cost or 
quoted/fair value.

3.8 	  Construction Contracts 
Construction contract is a contract specifically 
negotiated for the construction of an asset or 
of a group of assets, which are interrelated or 
interdependent in terms of design, technology, 
function, purpose or use. According to its 
characteristics, a construction contract 
can either be accounted for separately i.e. 
segmented into several components which 
are each accounted separately or combined 
with another construction contract in progress 
to form a single construction contract for 
accounting purposes.  

The Company executes cost plus mark up / 
fee construction contracts and the ‘recoverable 
costs incurred on the contract plus an addition 
of the fixed mark up  / fee agreed with the 
customer under the contractual terms’ as at 
the date of Statement of Financial Position is 
treated as ‘Construction Contracts’.

Progress billing and advances are deducted 
from the value of the ’Construction Contracts’ for 
the specific contract and recorded as Amounts 
Due from Customers for Contract Work and in 
case progress billing and advances exceed this 
value, the same are recorded under liabilities as 
Amounts Due to Customers for Contract Work. 
For the revenue recognition policy on 
construction contracts, refer note 3.19. 

Amounts expected to be recovered or settled 
within 12 months from the reporting date are 
classified as current assets / liabilities. If not, 
they are presented under non-current assets / 
liabilities.



38    Annual Report 2013   

3.9 	 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from 
customers in the ordinary course of business 
of transmission and supply of electricity. Trade 
receivables also include progress billing under 
construction contracts. Trade receivables are 
initially recognized at the sale/recoverable 
value and are assessed at each Balance Sheet 
date for collectability. The Company estimates 
the portion of its trade receivables that are 
uncollectable based on ageing, conduct of the 
customer and business/historical experience 
and provision for doubtful trade receivables 
is accordingly provided for. Trade receivables 
are classified as current assets if collection is 
expected within twelve months as at Statement 
of Financial Position date,  if not, they are 
classified  under non-current assets.

3.10 	 Loans and advances
Loans and advances represent advances 
given to suppliers and contractors in the 
ordinary course of the business activities of 
the Company. Advances also include inter 
corporate deposits placed by the Company for 
earning interest income. Loan and advances 
are initially recognized at the value of cash 
advanced and are assessed at each Statement 
of Financial Position date for recoverability and 
the provision is recognized when it is more likely  
that the Company will not be able to collect the 
same. Loans and advances are classified under 
current assets if payment is recoverable within 
one year or less as at  Statement of Financial 
Position date, if not, they are classified  under 
non-current assets.

3.11 	 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in 
hand, bank balances and deposits, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less and that are 
readily convertible to known amount of cash 
and cash equivalent and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

3.12 	 Inventories
An inventory consists of stores and spares 
held for operation & maintenance and use in 
construction of an asset. 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value. Cost is determined using the 
weighted average cost formula and comprises 
cost of purchases and other incidental expenses 
incurred in acquiring inventories and bringing 
them to their existing location and condition. 

3.13 Group Investment and Insurance 
Reserve

The nature and purpose of these reserves are 
as follows:

i.	 Group Investment Reserve: 

The reserve created during the earlier year under 
the ‘Group Investment Reserve (GIR) Scheme’ 
as per the DHI Ownership Policy to retain 
earnings in the DHI owned Companies (DoCs) 
to finance Projects of strategic importance. The 
stated objectives of GIR are as under:

-	 To build funds for investments.
-	 To build funds to meet National 

exigencies.
-	 To optimize on the limited pool of capital 

available in the group and maximize 
returns to the Government and the 
State.

-	 To facilitate transfer of capital among 
the Companies in the group and within 
the legal framework in Bhutan.

-	 To enable the DoCs to optimize its 
capital structure and improve returns.

-	 To provide predictability in flow of funds 
from DoCs to DHI and to MoF.

ii.	 Insurance Reserve:

Reserve created to mitigate the risk of assets 
of the Company against any damages due to 
natural calamities.

3.14 Borrowings
Borrowings are stated at principal outstay	
nding and interest accrued and due on such 
borrowings based on the applicable interest rate. 
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities 
unless the Company has an unconditional right 
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 
months after the Statement of Financial Position 
date.
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3.15 Grants  
Grants from Government and Non-Government 
sources are recognized where there is 
reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all attached conditions will be 
complied with. 

Grants relating to expense items are recognized 
as income on a systematic basis over the 
periods that the related costs, which it is 
intended to compensate, are expensed. The 
unallocated portion of such grant is presented 
as part of Deferred Grants in the Statement of 
Financial Position.

Grants related to non-current assets are treated 
as Deferred Income in the Statement of Financial 
Position and are recognized to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income on a systematic basis 
over the useful life of the related assets.

Grant received as compensation for expenses/
losses already incurred or with no future related 
costs is recognized as income in the year it is 
received or becomes receivable.

BAS 20-Accounting for Government Grant and 
disclosure of Government Assistance has been 
implemented by the Company retrospectively 
for the grants existed as on the transition date 
except its Para 10A regarding recognition of 
the benefit of government loan at below market 
rate of interest as a government grant, as the 
same is applicable from January 1, 2018 and 
the Company has not decided for the early 
implementation of the same.  

3.16  Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other 
costs that Company incurs in connection with 
the borrowing of funds. 

General and specific borrowing costs (net of 
investment income on temporary investment of 
those borrowings) that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the 
costs of the asset, until such time the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 
A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready 
for its intended use or sale, which is two years 

or more as decided by the Company keeping in 
view the nature of assets and past trend of time 
taken for their completion.

All other borrowing costs are charged as 
expense to Statement of Comprehensive 
Income in the period they occur.

The Company has adopted the transitional 
provisions available in BAS 23, “Borrowing 
costs” and has elected to apply the provisions 
of the Standard from transition date i.e. January 
1, 2012.

3.17  Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are obligations 
incurred by the Company towards purchase 
of electricity and other goods and availing the 
services that have been acquired or availed 
in the ordinary course of business. Trade and 
other payables are classified under current 
liabilities, if payment is due within 12 months as 
at  Statement of Financial Position date, if not, 
they are classified  under non-current liabilities.

3.18  Employee benefit liabilities 
Contribution to Provident Fund administered by 
National Pension and Provident Fund is charged 
to Statement of Comprehensive Income as and 
when they fall due. 

Retirement benefit liabilities are recognized 
when the Company has a present obligation 
(legal or constructive) as a result of past event, 
it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Gratuity and Leave encashment are provided 
for based on actuarial valuation as at 
the Statement of Financial Position date. 
Retirement benefit liabilities are discounted 
to present value applying the pre-tax rate of 
return on Government bonds of similar tenure 
and currency. Increase in the liability due to 
passage of time is recognized as interest 
expense. Actuarial gains and losses arising 
from experience adjustments and changes in 
actuarial assumptions are charged or credited 
to equity in other comprehensive income in the 
period in which they arise.
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Further, the contribution towards the gratuity 
liability is invested in fixed deposits with the 
banks.

The expected cost of Performance Based 
Incentive and Variable Allowances is recognized 
as an expense when there is a legal or 
constructive obligation to make such payments 
as a result of past performance and a reliable 
estimate of the obligation can be made.

3.19 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is 
probable that the associated economic benefits 
will flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable.

The following specific recognition criteria must 
also be met before revenue is recognized:

(a)	Electricity Business:
Revenue attributable to sale of electricity is 
accounted for as per the tariff rates approved 
by the Bhutan Electricity Authority on the 
basis of billing to consumers under the billing 
cycle followed by the Company. Revenue 
is recognized as electricity is delivered and 
consumed by customers. Accordingly, Revenue 
also includes an estimate of unbilled revenue. 
Unbilled revenue represents an estimate of 
electricity consumed by customers since the 
date of each customer’s last billed meter reading 
that has not been billed at the reporting date.

Wheeling charges (transmission charges) are 
accounted on the basis of periodic billing to the 
power generating companies at the tariff rates 
approved by Bhutan Electricity Authority.

(b) Construction Business:
The Company executes cost plus construction 
contracts for construction of electrical 
infrastructure, In the case of a cost plus contract, 
the outcome can be estimated reliably when it is 
probable that the economic benefits associated 
with the contract will flow to the Company and 

the contract costs attributable to the contract, 
whether or not specifically reimbursable, can 
be clearly identified and measured reliably. 
Accordingly revenue from a cost plus contract 
is recognized by reference to the recoverable 
costs incurred during the year plus the fixed 
mark up under the contractual terms.

(c)  Interest income	
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion 
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding 
and at the effective interest rate applicable.

(d)  Liquidated damages and penalties
Liquidated damages and penalties occur 
when contractors/suppliers fail to meet the 
key performance indicators set out in their 
contract with the Company. Income resulting 
from claims for liquidated damages and 
penalties is recognized as other income when 
all performance obligations are met (including 
when a contractual entitlement exists), it can 
be reliably measured and it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Company.

(e)  Other items of revenue
Other items of revenue which arise from the 
provision of services incidental to the core 
activities of the business are recognized when 
the services are provided and it is probable 
that economic benefits associated with the 
transaction will flow to the Company and amount 
can be measured reliably. 

3.20 Earnings per share (‘EPS’)
The Company presents the basic and diluted 
EPS data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is 
computed by dividing the net profit for the year 
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the net 
profit for the year attributable to the ordinary 
shareholders and by adjusting the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares. 
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3.21  Dividends
Dividends (including interim dividends) to 
ordinary shareholders is recognized as a liability 
and deducted from shareholders’ equity in the 
period in which the dividends are declared by 
the Board of directors and approved by the 
ordinary shareholders.

3.22 Critical accounting estimates and 
assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements 
requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts in the financial statements. 
Although the Company regularly assesses 
these estimates, actual results could differ 
materially from these estimates. Changes in 
estimates are recorded in the year in which they 
become known. 

Actual results may differ from management’s 
estimates if these results differ from historical 
experience or other assumptions do not turn 
out to be substantially accurate, even if such 
assumptions were reasonable when made. 

The said estimates are based on the facts and 
events, that existed as at the date of statement 
of financial position, or that occurred after that 
date but provide additional evidence about 
conditions existing as at the statement of 
financial position date.

The estimates and assumptions that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment 
to the carrying values of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed 
below.

4.	 Critical accounting estimates and 
assumptions

a)	Useful lives of electricity generation, 
transmission and distribution assets

The costs of electricity generation, transmission 
and distribution assets are depreciated on a 

straight-line basis over their respective useful 
lives. Management estimates the useful lives 
of these assets to be within 30 years. Changes 
in the expected level of usage, technological 
developments, level of wear and tear could 
impact the economic useful lives and the 
residual values of these assets, therefore future 
depreciation charges could be revised and could 
have an impact on the profit in future years.

b) Retirement benefit obligations
The costs of retirement benefits and present 
value of the retirement benefit obligations are 
determined using actuarial valuations. An 
actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions which may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include the 
determination of the discount rate, future salary 
increases, mortality rates and future pension 
increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation 
and its long-term nature, retirement benefit 
obligations are sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at 
each reporting date.

c)  Provision for doubtful debts
As at each Statement of Financial Position date, 
the Company assesses recoverability of trade 
receivables. Provision for doubtful debts is 
recognized based on the historical experience of 
collectability of debts. The Company estimates 
the portion of its outstanding receivables that 
cannot be collected based on aging schedules 
at an increasing percentage of each aging 
category. Actual doubtful debts could differ from 
these estimates.

d)	 Unbilled revenue
The unbilled revenue is calculated using average 
of last three months consumption for the Low 
voltage consumer and the actual consumption 
for the Medium and High Voltage consumer. 

Actual electricity usage could differ from those 
estimates.
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5.1 Capital work-in-progress as at December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and January 01, 2012 
comprise the following:

Particulars December 31, 2013
As at

December 31, 2013 January 1, 2012

Generation equipments 20,827,980 17,775,734 16,146,908

Transmission lines 1,270,558,737 699,538,225 802,820,500

Distribution Assets 2,557,838,643 2,895,005,270 2,330,741,489

Buildings 258,629,948 112,438,977 123,390,591

Other Civil Structures 17,553,808 21,833,315 13,923,395

Others 6,365,582 1,783,235 315,881,896

Advance for works 57,610,674 130,165,596 145,645,584

Total 4,189,385,372 3,878,540,352 3,748,550,363

5.2 Borrowing costs amounting to Nu. 1,674,300 and Nu. 362,874 has been capitalized by the     
Company for the year ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 respectively on 
qualifying assets at a rate of 0.02% respectively.

5.3 Gross carrying value includes Fixed Assets transferred from erstwhile Department of Power,    
Royal Government of Bhutan at a written down value of Nu 1,760.89 million.

5.4 Property, plant and equipment are pledged as securities for borrowings. [Refer note 17.1]

5.5 The Company has early adopted Para 43 of BAS 16 ‘Property, plant and equipment’ which is 
effective from annual period commencing from January 01, 2016. The early adoption does not 
have material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

6.	  Intangible assets

Computer Software
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Opening gross carrying value (i) 187,697,454 152,052,299

Additions 1,280,555 35,645,155

Disposals - -

Closing gross carrying value(ii) 188,978,009 187,697,454

Opening accumulated amortization (iii) (42,822,591) (9,108,856)

Addition (37,174,886) (33,713,735)

Closing accumulated amortization (iv) (79,997,477) (42,822,591)

Net carrying value (ii-iv) 108,980,532 144,874,863

Net carrying value as at January 01, 2012 (i-iii)				      142,943,443

As atAs at

As at
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7.  Investements

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 01, 2012
Long Term - Other Investments 
– Unquoted
300,000 RICBL Bonds Series II 
at Nu. 1,000/- per bond 300,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000

Total 300,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000

8. Work in progress- Construction Contracts/Amounts due from/to customers for contract 
work

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 01, 2012

Work in progress -Construction 
Contracts 5,049,634,756 2,981,647,549 715,581,976

Less: Advances received (5,886,283,206) (3,401,344,696) (2,700,338,637)

Total (836,648,450) (419,697,147) (1,984,756,661)

Recognized and included in financial statements as:

Work in progress-Construction 
Contracts:

- Current portion 62,849,753 69,198,162 33,801,957

- Non-current portion 4,986,785,003 2,912,449,387 681,780,019

Amounts due to customers for 
construction contracts:

-  Current portion 144,295,878 210,480,544 482,611,686

-  Non-current portion 5,741,987,328 3,190,864,152 2,217,726,951

Total (836,648,450) (419,697,147) (1,984,756,661)

8.1  When advances from customers exceed the value of work in progress- construction contracts, 
the same are presented on gross basis under liabilities as part of amounts due to customers for 
contract work.

9. Trade & other receivables
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 01, 2012

Receivables against supply of 
electricity (Refer Note 9.1) 12,084,985 25,268,618 38,452,250

Total 12,084,985 25,268,618 38,452,250

9.1  Receivable from a consumer in 60 equated monthly installments of Nu. 1,098,636 with last 
installment due on November 15, 2015.

As at

As at

As at

As at

As at

As at
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10.   Long Term Loans & Advances

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 01, 2012

Advance to Holding Company - 600,000,000 -

Advance to contractors 572,956,095 81,883,028 600,587,149

Advances to employees

-  Bike Loan 1,992,000 6,375,378 4,775,090

-  Welfare Loan 187,695 294,366 -

Total 575,135,790 688,552,772 605,362,239

11.  Inventories

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 01, 2012

Stores and spare parts 245,912,682 263,662,670 307,478,716

Stock- ISU 57,230,595 52,833,852 62,526,401

Stock –Uniform 1,950,622 405,409 594,160
Less: Provision for obsolete 
inventory (12,018,997) - -

Total 293,074,902 316,901,931 370,599,277

12.   Trade & other receivables

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 01, 2012
Receivables against 
transmission and supply of 
electricity

146,164,967 100,589,154 187,471,974

Less: Provision for doubtful 
debts (9,161,017) (8,733,468) (5,433,395)

Total 137,003,950 91,855,686 182,038,579

As at

As at

As at

As at

As at

As at
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13.      Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 01, 2012

Cash in hand 2,527,820 2,363,515 14,440,123
Bank balances in current 
accounts 1,274,436,354 778,176,650 1,983,966,571
Balance with bank towards Staff 
Welfare Fund 8,321,775 6,617,175 4,820,508

Total 1,285,285,949 787,157,340 2,003,227,202

13.1 There are no restricted cash and cash equivalents.

14.	 Short term loans and advances

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 01, 2012
Advance to Holding Company 1,000,000,000 - -

Advances to suppliers 213,903,174 23,012,267 32,859,027

Advances to contractors 271,881,326 365,526,257 106,759,916

BST Receivable 313,000 5,510,141 -

Advances to employees

- Travel and salary advance 1,855,570 130,779 387,941

- Expenses 810,487 252,678 328,368

- Bike Loan 2,149,576 903,190 336,526

- Welfare Loan 457,455 118,744 372,639

Prepaid expenses 3,589,498 38,828,378 40,555,086

Other advances (Refer Note 14.1) 16,080,004 41,471,262 13,394,437

Total 1,511,040,090 475,753,696 194,993,940

14.1 Includes BST advance paid to contractors & other miscellaneous advances.

As at

As atAs at

As at
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15.	 Other current assets

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 01, 2012

Interest accrued:

- on fixed deposits 49,469,185 55,890,326 19,510,188

- on RICBL Bonds 9,692,054 9,720,492 9,747,123

- on advance paid to Holding 
Company 73,442,626 25,442,623 -

Fixed deposits having original 
tenure of more than three months

- with Bank for Gratuity liability  
(Refer Note 36(viii)) 327,544,555 227,822,504 221,634,219

- other fixed deposits 265,328,313 932,634,145 990,435,588

Accrued Unbilled Revenue 287,518,681 280,963,643 270,109,107

Other receivables 22,815,331 23,226,484 64,950,747

Total 1,035,810,745 1,555,700,217 1,576,386,972

16.	Share Capital

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 01, 2012

Authorized
15,000,000 Equity Shares of Nu. 
1,000/- each 15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000 7,500,000,000

Total 15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000 7,500,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Fully 
Paid up
8,190,191 Equity  Shares of Nu. 
1,000/- each 8,190,191,000 8,178,979,000 7,315,673,000

Total 8,190,191,000 8,178,979,000 7,315,673,000

16.1	 All ordinary shares are ranked equally. Fully paid shares carry one vote per share and the right 
to dividends. There are no restrictions on the transfer of shares in the Company or on voting 
rights between holders of shares. Entire share capital is held by the Holding Company M/s 
Druk Holding & Investments (A Royal Government of Bhutan Undertaking).

16.2 4,875,828 equity shares (Previous year: 4,875,828) have been allotted for consideration other 
than cash and 3,314,363 equity shares (Previous year: 3,303,151) have been allotted pursuant 
to conversion of grant of Royal Government of Bhutan. 

As at

As at

As at
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16.3	 Reconciliation of Equity Shares Outstanding:

December 31, 2013
December 31, 

2012 January 01, 2012

At the beginning of the year

- Number of shares 8,178,979 7,315,673 7,315,673

- Amount (in Nu.) 8,178,979,000 7,315,673,000 7,315,673,000

Add: issued during the year

- Number of shares 11,212 863,306 -

- Amount (in Nu.) 11,212,000 863,306,000 -

Less: Redeemed during the year

- Number of shares - - -

- Amount (in Nu.) - - -

At the end of the year

- Number of shares 8,190,191 8,178,979 7,315,673

- Amount (in Nu.) 8,190,191,000 8,178,979,000 7,315,673,000

17.	Borrowings

December 31, 2013
December 31, 

2012 January 01, 2012

i) Secured borrowings
Term loan from National 
Pension and Provident fund 
(Refer Note 17.1)
- for Transmission Lines Project 461,202,500 503,130,000 503,130,000

ii) Unsecured borrowings:
Term loans from Royal 
Government of Bhutan (Refer 
Note 17.2)
- for Rural Electrification 

Projects 5,050,578,802 4,557,506,729 3,489,954,435

- for Tala Hydroelectric Project 549,858,691 659,830,429 764,283,328

6,061,639,993 5,720,467,158   4,757,367,763

As at

As at
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Borrowings analyzed as 
follows:

December 31, 2013
December 31, 

2012 January 01, 2012

Current portion 196,757,453 196,757,453 154,041,547

Non-current portion 5,864,882,540 5,523,709,705 4,603,326,216

Total 6,061,639,993 5,720,467,158 4,757,367,763

Nature of security:

17.1  Term loan of Nu. 461,202,500 from National pension and provident fund has been obtained 
for setting up of the project “220 kV Double Circuit Transmission Lines from Dagapela-Tsirang- 
Gelephu to Lodrai and is secured by first mortgage charge on project assets and carry fixed rate 
of interest of 9% p.a and is repayable within 12 years in 24 half yearly equal installments with last 
installment due on September 01, 2024.

17.2 Other Term Loans: 

i)  Rural electrification Loan I (RE-I) of Nu. 182,689,503 has been obtained from the Royal 
Government of Bhutan for Rural Electrification Works and is repayable within 30 years at an 
interest rate of 6% in 60 semi-annually equal installments with last installment due on August 
15, 2035. 

ii)  Rural electrification Loan II (RE-II) of Nu. 329,865,079 has been obtained from the Royal 
Government of Bhutan for Rural Electrification Works and is repayable within 24 years at an 
interest rate of 6% in 48 semi-annually equal installments with last installment due on August 
31, 2032.

iii)  Rural electrification Loan III (RE-III) of Nu. 401,022,791 has been obtained from the Royal 
Government of Bhutan for Rural Electrification Works and is repayable within 24 years at 
an interest rate of 6% in 48 semi-annually equal installments with last installment due on 
September 15, 2035.

iv)  Loan for Tala Trasmission Lines of Nu. 549,858,691 has been obtained from the Royal 
Government of Bhutan and is repayable within 12 years at an interest rate of 9% in semi-
annually equal installments with last installment due on December 15, 2018.

v)  Rural electrification loan - RE IV and V, JICA Loan I and II and the ADA loan of Nu. 4,137,001,429 
has been obtained from the Royal Government of Bhutan is still effective and not closed. The 
rate of interest and the loan tenure shall be determined by the Royal Government of Bhutan.

17.3 Refer Note 36(viii) for transaction wise detail under each borrowing.

As atAs at
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18.	  Deferred grants
Grants are received from the Royal Government of Bhutan as counterpart financing to the 
Rural Electrification Loan to carry out the rural electrification works for the civil component and 
establishment expenses. The material costs are financed through the loan. There are no unfilled 
conditions and contingencies attached to this grant.

December 31, 2013
December 31, 

2012 January 01, 2012

As at January 1 801,078,081 576,400,492 576,400,492

Received during the year 4,076,705 232,523,000 -

Adjusted during the year - - -
Released to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income (15,597,419) (7,845,411) -

As at December 31 789,557,367 801,078,081 576,400,492

Deferred grant analyzed as follows

December 31, 2013
December 31, 

2012 January 01, 2012

Current portion 16,022,046 15,597,419 7,845,411

Non-current portion 773,535,321 785,480,662 568,555,081

Total 789,557,367 801,078,081 576,400,492

19.	  Employee benefit liabilities

December 31, 2013
December 31, 

2012 January 01, 2012

Provision for:

- Gratuity (Refer Note 36(i)) 343,937,434 319,349,767 223,128,041

- Leave encashment 34,744,167 32,095,007 22,727,762

- Performance Based Incentive 
Scheme 63,809,990 59,649,188 42,254,821

- Performance Based Variable 
Allowance 38,232,979 35,320,241 24,922,627

Total 480,724,570 446,414,203 313,033,251

As at

As at

As at

As at

As at

As at
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Employee benefit liabilities analyzed as follows:

December 31, 2013 December 31,2012 January 01, 2012

Current portion 143,690,521 129,779,608 91,584,145

Non-current portion 337,034,049 316,634,595 221,449,106

Total 480,724,570 446,414,203 313,033,251

20.	 Deferred Income Tax liabilities (net)  

Deferred income tax

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities and the gross 
movement on the deferred income tax income liability (net) is as under:

For the year ended 

Particulars December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Opening Balance 247,989,811 191,813,272

Income Statement charge 57,552,343 56,176,539

Closing Balance 305,542,154 247,989,811

Deferred tax liability (net) of Nu 191,813,272 as on 01.01.2012 i.e the date of initial recognition of 
the deferred tax assets and liability has been charged to Retained Earnings.

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year ended December 31, 
2012 and December 31, 2013 are as under:

Deferred income tax liabilities
As at  

January 01, 
2013

Adjustment to 
Statement of 

Comprehensive 
Income

As at  
December 31, 

2013

Property, plant and equipment 265,259,217 62,050,709 327,309,926

Total 265,259,217 62,050,709 327,309,926

Deferred income tax assets As at  
January 01, 2013

Adjustment to 
Statement of 

Comprehensive 
Income

As at  
December 
31, 2013

Provision for doubtful debts 2,620,040 128,265 2,748,305

Training 14,649,366 764,402 15,413,768

Provision for obsolete inventories - 3,605,699 3,605,699

Total 17,269,406 4,498,366 21,767,772

As atAs at
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Deferred income tax liabilities

As at  
January 01, 2013

Adjustment to 
Statement of 

Comprehensive 
Income

As at  
December 
31, 2013

Property, plant and equipment 206,588,804 58,670,413 265,259,217

Total 206,588,804 58,670,413 265,259,217 

Deferred income tax assets As at  
January 1, 2013

Adjustment to 
Statement of 

Comprehensive 
Income

As at  
December 31, 

2013

Provision for doubtful debts 1,630,019 990,022 2,620,040

Training 13,145,514 1,503,852 14,649,366

Total 14,775,533      2,493,874 17,269,406

20.1 There are no unrecognized 
deferred taxes.

21.	  Other non-current liabilities

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 01, 2012

Security Deposits

- Energy meter 136,761,103 118,653,294 124,885,699

- Deposit works - - 987,802

- Others (Refer Note 21.1) 16,759,951 16,759,951 16,759,951

Retention money 610,487,899 297,693,853 61,818,626

764,008,953 433,107,098 204,452,078

21.1   Include deposit received from Punatshangchhu-I Hydroelectric Project Authority as compensation 
for BPCL assets at Wangdue which will be adjustable after the assets being transferred to the PHPA-I 
on completion of the project.

As at
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22.	 Trade & other payables

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 1, 2012

Trade and other payables:

- electricity 650,805,260 765,896,211 573,024,487

- suppliers & contractors 309,325,093 270,198,378 195,169,623

- services 1,725,678 2,441,546 4,925,597

Other payables 66,954 1,586,346 11,619

Total 961,922,985 1,040,122,481 773,131,326

23.	  Income tax payable 
(net of advances)

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 1, 2012

Provision for corporate tax 351,630,058 619,343,766 311,282,799
Less: Advance income tax and 
Tax   deducted at source (219,004,741) (523,267,429) (9,961,061)

Total 132,625,317 96,076,337 301,321,738
 

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Current income tax    

Current tax on profits for the year 351,630,058 308,060,967

Adjustment in respect of prior period - 2,559,921

Total Current income tax 351,630,058 310,620,888

Deferred income tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 57,552,343 56,176,539

Adjustment in respect of prior years

Total Deferred income tax 57,552,343 56,176,539

Income tax expense 409,182,401 366,797,427

Reconciliation between the provisions for income tax to the amount computed by applying the 
statutory income tax rate to the income before provision for income tax is summarized below:

As at

As at

As at

As at

As at

As at
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December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Profit before tax    1,372,456,082 1,265,115,334
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates       411,736,824    379,534,600
Income tax effect due to:
- Other non-deductible expenses

Medical expenses 253,603                    331,526
Donation 191,400                    209,771

    Fines and penalties 15,532                           -
- Others (3,014,958)                           -
- BAS Transition adjustments -               (15,838,390)
Income tax charge 409,182,401               364,237,506

The applicable corporate income tax rate was same, i.e. 30% for the current year and earlier year 
ended on December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 respectively. 

24.	 Other current liabilities

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012  January 01, 2012

Security deposits:

- Energy meter 21,458,359 17,935,555 15,094,182

- Capacity reserve charges 8,616,301 6,227,823 7,766,475

- Performance security 3,329,772 4,632,017 2,971,162

Retention money 86,432,308 133,746,562 164,161,890
Interest accrued but not due on 
borrowings 34,318,408 80,460,822 35,992,281

Statutory liabilities 13,520,985 16,123,446 15,542,582

Welfare Grant Fund 8,321,775 6,617,175 4,720,508

Payables to employees 3,496,058 2,220,690 2,074,353

Accrued Expenses 12,469,074 4,826,560 10,028,590

Other liabilities 3,623,120 1,052,407 1,745,852

Total 195,586,160 273,843,057 260,097,875

25.	 Income from construction contracts
For the year ended

December 
31, 2013

December 
31, 2012

Value of contracts performed & service charges 2,210,533,317 2,389,650,831

Total 2,210,533,317 2,389,650,831

As at

As at

As at

As at

For the year ended
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26.	 Other income

For the year ended

December 
31, 2013

  December 
31, 2012

Interest income on:

-  Fixed deposits 44,529,193 70,241,886

- RICBL bonds 20,100,000 20,113,692

- Advance to Holding Company 48,000,000 25,344,262

Penalties and liquidated damages 40,144,042 55,210,751

Revenue grants - 4,000,000

Amortization of deferred grants (Refer Note18) 15,597,419 7,845,411

Liabilities no longer required written back 66,676 3,046,009

Scrap Sales 7,885,375 4,719,263

Tender form sales 1,749,099 2,318,350

Hire and lease charges 1,769,268 1,617,219

Other miscellaneous income 57,863,798 49,441,153

Total 237,704,870 243,897,996

27.	 Operation and maintenance expenses
For the year ended

December 
31, 2013

December 
31, 2012

Repairs and maintenance:

- Material/Stores 90,149,337 58,031,685

- Services 68,295,910 53,612,297

- Meter Equipment 1,099,689 2,338,393

- Vehicle running expenses (POL) 20,946,739 17,526,993

- Consumables 6,358,940 8,261,504

- Others 47,004,027 46,016,222

Provision on Obsolescence of Material 12,018,996 -

Total 245,873,638 185,787,094

For the year ended

For the year ended
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28.	 Employee benefits expense
For the year ended

December 
31, 2013

December 
31, 2012

Salaries, wages, bonus and allowances 523,754,226 488,950,651

Contribution to provident and pension fund 35,466,914 32,524,264

Contribution for gratuity and leave encashment 61,914,221 59,107,871

Workmen and staff welfare expenses 53,584,076 51,589,249

Total 674,719,437 632,172,035

29. 	Finance Costs
For the year ended

December 
31, 2013

December 
31, 2012

Interest on long term borrowings from:
Royal Government of Bhutan for:
- Rural electrification Projects      57,570,003 58,950,070
- For Tala Hydro Electric Project 70,827,968 45,899,495
National Pension and Provident fund for:
- Transmission Lines Project 42,835,161 45,406,100
Other finance charges 132,049 108,910
Total 171,365,181 150,364,575
Less: Amounts capitalized on qualifying assets 1,674,300          362,874 
Total 169,690,881 150,001,701
30.	 Other expenses

For the year ended
December 
31, 2013

   December 
31, 2012

Travelling expenses          19,271,661          18,808,651 

Rent charges            4,507,054           7,454,659 

Rates and taxes            1,034,768           1,361,823 

Printing and stationary          13,454,540           9,712,122 

License and registration fees            8,142,695           3,530,234 

Audit fees and expenses              814,207              680,889 

Office expenses            6,741,411           5,090,365 

Consultancy fees            4,429,055              377,600 

Entertainment expenses            5,021,640           4,984,213 

For the year ended

For the year ended

For the year ended
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For the year ended
December 31, 

2013
   December 31, 

2012
Insurance charges            2,061,457           1,168,274 

Donations and Contributions            1,218,017           3,601,946 

Bad debt/Provision for doubtful debts              707,234           3,300,072 

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment          17,181,873          13,942,522 

Board meeting expenses and sitting fees              868,000              926,130 

Miscellaneous expenses             3,382,356           3,835,738 

Total        90,872,025       81,089,590 

31.	 Earnings per share (‘EPS’)

Reconciliations of net profit for the year and ordinary shares used in the computation of basic and 
diluted EPS are as follows:

Basic EPS attributable ordinary shares

For the year ended

December 
31, 2013

December 
31, 2012 

(Restated)

December
31, 2012 

(Previous 
GAAP)

Net profit attributable to the owners of the 
Company 963,273,680 898,317,907 901,699,813

Issued and outstanding ordinary shares at the 
beginning of the year 8,178,979 7,701,615 7,701,615

Effect of ordinary shares issued during the year 934 39,780 39,780

Weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding at the end of the year 8,179,913 7,741,395 7,741,395

Basic and Diluted EPS attributable to 
ordinary shares 117.76 116.04 116.48

32.	 Related party transactions
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Druk Holding & Investments (a Royal Government of 
Bhutan undertaking). The Company considers that for the purpose of BAS 24 the Royal Government 
of Bhutan is in a position of control over it, and therefore regards the Royal Government of Bhutan 
and its controlled companies/corporations as related parties for the purpose of the disclosures 
required by BAS 24.

A summary of the Company’s transactions with the Royal Government of Bhutan and its related 
entities is included below:

For the year ended

For the year ended
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Name of Related 
Party Relationship Nature of transaction with 

related party Amount in Nu.

Royal Government of 
Bhutan Ultimate holding

a) Borrowings for rural 
electrification project 5,050,578,802

b) Borrowings for Tala 
hydroelectric project. 549,858,690

c) Grants received for rural 
electrification 15,289,505

d) Other reimbursements 560,000

Druk Holding & 
Investments

Holding 
Company

a) Consideration for issue of 
equity shares 8,190,191,000

b) Payment of dividend 315,594,935

c) Placement of inter-corporate 
deposit. 1,000,000,000

Druk Green Power 
Corporation Limited

Fellow 
Subsidiary

(a) Purchase of electricity for 
transmission and distribution 1,145,824,393

(b) Wheeling charges 623,431,239

Druk Air Corporation 
Limited

Fellow 
Subsidiary Air Travel Service 3,232,797

Royal Insurance 
Corporation of Bhutan 
Ltd

Government 
undertaking

a)  Insurance services 1,073,344

b)  Investment in Bonds 300,000,000

c)  Interest income earned on 
bonds 20,100,000

DHI& DHI owned 
Companies

Holding & 
Subsidiary Supply of electricity 70,347,053

Key management personnel (‘KMP’)

KMPs are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the Company directly or indirectly including any director whether executive or otherwise. 
Key management personnel of the company for the purpose of disclosure of compensation include 
the Managing Director as required by the Companies Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan 2000.
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Summary of compensation paid to the KMP:	

For the year ended 

December  31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Basic Salary and contract allowance 1,390,500 1,350,000

Performance based variable allowances 322,043 69,662

Performance based incentive scheme 159,900 112,795

Sitting fees 127,000 126,000

Contribution to provident fund 101,976 95,272

Total 2,101,419 1,753,729

As the liabilities for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on actuarial basis for the Company 
as a whole, the amounts pertaining to KMP are not included above. 

Note:
i)	 Reimbursement of expenses incurred by related parties for and behalf of the Company 

and vice-versa, and the related outstanding amounts have not been included in the above 
disclosures.

ii) 	 The disclosures given above have been reckoned on the basis of information available with 
the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

33.  Change in accounting policy
In the current year, the Company changed its 
accounting policy for valuation of retirement 
benefit liabilities towards gratuity and leave 
encashment. Previously such liabilities were 
estimated by the management on accrual 
basis without actuarial valuation. From the year 
ended December 31, 2013, the Company has 
provided for gratuity and leave encashment 
on actuarial basis with retrospective effect. 
The impact of this change in accounting 
policy on the financial statements resulted in 
decreased employee benefit expenses and 
retirement benefit liabilities of gratuity and leave 
encashment by Nu. 24,168,423, Nu.19,290,829 
and Nu.11,712,392 as at December 31, 
2013, 2012 and January 1, 2012 respectively. 
Further, the change in accounting policy has 
also resulted in decrease in employee benefit 
expense by Nu.76,004,601 for the year ended 
December 31, 2012, however, increased the 
expense by Nu.29,799,799 for the year ended 
December 31, 2013.

In the current year, the Company changed its 
accounting policy for capitalization of borrowing 
costs on general borrowings. Previously, 
the Company used to capitalize borrowing 
cost related to specific borrowings only. 
The Company has not applied this change 
retrospectively, in view of the accounting policy 
option available under BAS 23. Accordingly, 
the Company has not capitalized borrowing 
costs relating to qualifying assets for which the 
commencement date for capitalization in on or 
before the effective date of the standard. As the 
commencement date for capitalization of all the 
general borrowings costs is prior to the effective 
date there is no capitalization of borrowing 
cost during the year 2013 on account of this 
changed policy and hence and hence, there is 
no impact of this policy change on the Financial 
Statements of the Company.
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34.	 Capital Commitments
The Company has contractual commitments 
of Nu 4,613,129,615, Nu 4,755,593,062 and 
Nu 7,028,600,994 as at December 31, 2013, 
December 31, 2012 and January 1, 2012 
respectively; pertaining to capital expenditures 
relating to acquisition of Property, plant and 
equipment. 

35.  Contingent liabilities 
As on the reporting date, there are two pending 
litigation against the Company in the appellate 
Court. For both the cases, the lower court has 
passed the judgment in favour of the company 
and has been appealed to the higher court by the 
defendants. The probable amount of the claims 
from the case to the company is to the tune of 
Nu 6,819,043 and is contingent on the judgment 
which in the opinion of the Management is not 
significant.

36.   Other Notes to Accounts 

i.	 Gratuity:
	 The liability towards Gratuity has been kept 

in the fixed deposits with the banks. As on 
December 31, 2013 there is a balance 
of Nu. 342,217,459 in the fixed deposits 
(including interest of Nu 14,672,904 
accrued thereon) earmarked towards 
gratuity liability of Nu 343,937,434 as on 
December 31, 2013, showing a shortfall 
of Nu 1,719,975. The said shortfall shall 
be made good in the coming year/s by 
investing in the fixed deposits, however, 
the liability has been fully provided in the 
accounts and during the year a provision 
of Nu. 24,587,667 (Previous year: Nu. 
95,357,804) has been made in the 
accounts. 

        
ii.	 As per last domestic tariff revision from 

October 1, 2013, the revised weighted 
average tariff is Nu. 1.808 /unit as 
compared to Nu. 1.742 /unit prior to the 
revision.

iii.	 Provision for doubtful debts is made as 
per the policy approved by the Board. Due 
to streamlining of the ERP (SAP) system 
the ageing of the debtors balances based 
on which the provision has been made 
at the stipulated rate could be generated 
on net basis i.e. after adjustment of credit 
balances and not for the debit balances 
on which the provision is required to be 
made. Accordingly the provision has been 
made on net balances, due to which, the 
possibility of short provisioning cannot be 
ruled out, however, the management is of 
the view that impact thereof, if any, shall 
not be material.  

iv.	 As per the technical assessment of the 
slow and non moving material identified 
based on ageing and usage level of the 
inventory generated from ERP (SAP) 
System and also based on identification/
segregation of obsolete stock at the time 
of physical verification,  the  adequate 
provision has been made in the accounts 
towards obsolete material. 

v.	 In the opinion of the management, the 
value of assets other than fixed assets and 
investments, on realization in the ordinary 
course of business, will not be less than 
the value at which these are stated in the 
Statement of Financial Position.

vi.	 The letters have been sent to most of the 
parties for confirmation of the balances 
under trade and other receivables, loans 
and advances and trade and other 
payables, however, due to non receipt 
of the response from few parties, the 
balances are subject to confirmation / 
reconciliation in some cases. The impact, 
if any, subsequent to the confirmation/
reconciliation will be taken in the year of 
confirmation/reconciliation.
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vii.	 During the year, Company has given an 
interest free advance of Nu. 400 million 
to ‘Druk Holding and Investments (DHI)’, 
the 100% Holding Company. The said 
advance has been given from Group 
Investment Reserve (GIR) and will be 
convertible into shares of ‘Dungsam 
Cement Corporation Limited (DCCL)’ 
another DHI owned Company at the 
issue price applicable to the institutional 
investors as per the directions of DHI 
conveyed to the Company vide their 
letter no. DHI/CEO/BPC/2013/582 dated 
August 5, 2013. 

	 As per the Powers delegated by the Board 
of Directors (Board) to the Company’s 
officials in terms of Section 83(3) of The 
Companies Act of The Kingdom of Bhutan 
2000 (Act), no official of the Company 
is authorized to approve the loan for 
investment / inter-corporate loan and in 
the absence of delegation of such power 
to the Company’s officials, the same 
requires the approval of Board in terms 
of Section 83(2) of Act. The Board while 
deliberating on the issue “reiterated on the 
need of putting in place a legal framework 
for use of GIR as approved during the 

Annual General Meeting of the Company 
and in the absence of legal framework, 
Board could not approve inter-corporate 
loan requested by DHI. However, the 
Board reminded DHI to issue directives 
to the Company to release the said 
advance from GIR fund without need of 
Board to approve the same”. As such, 
the advance of Nu. 400 million has been 
given to DHI without the explicit approval 
of the Board, the delegated authority as 
per the Section 83(2) of Act. The said 
advance given towards investment in the 
DHI owned Company, as per the direction 
of DHI is to be adjusted from GIR as per 
the direction of DHI, however, the same 
has not been adjusted from GIR and has 
been considered  / shown in the accounts 
as ‘Advance to Holding Company’. 

	 Further, the said advance has been given 
without entering into any agreement/
contract with DHI, in the absence of 
which, the interest, if any, receivable 
on the same and the period / terms 
of   adjustment / repayment are not yet 
finalized/ decided.

viii.	 The detail of Loans Funds for the year is 
as under:

                                                                                                              (Amount in Nu.)

Particulars
Loan 

outstanding as 
on 01.01.2013

Disbursement 
during the 

year

Repayment 
during the 

year

Loan 
Outstanding as 
on 31.12.2013

Interest Paid/
provided for 
during the 

year

From Royal Government of Bhutan (Unsecured)

a.	 For Rural Electrification works

ADB-RE I 190,993,571 - 8,304,068 182,689,503 11,144,060

ADB-RE II 348,190,917 - 18,325,838 329,865,079 20,195,073

ADB-RE III 419,251,099 - 18,228,309 401,022,791 24,556,570

ADB-RE IV 1,029,180,345 31,755,670 - 1,060,936,015 70,827,968

ADB-RE V 343,529,831 87,604,695 - 431,134,526 -
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Particulars
Loan 

outstanding as 
on 01.01.2013

Disbursement 
during the 

year

Repayment 
during the 

year

Loan 
Outstanding as 
on 31.12.2013

Interest Paid/
provided for 
during the 

year

ADA 40,727,707 249,327,055 - 290,054,762 -

JICA-I 1,610,366,216 51,013,301 - 1,661,379,517 -

JICA-II 575,267,043 118,229,567 - 693,496,610 -

4,557,506,729 537,930,288 44,858,215 5,050,578,803 126,723,671

b.	 For Tala Transmission Lines

THP 457,428,925 - 76,238,154 381,190,771 -

THP- IDC 202,401,503 - 33,733,584 168,667,919 -

659,830,428 - 109,971,738 549,858,690 -

From National Pension and Provident Fund (Secured)

NPPF 503,130,000 - 41,927,500 461,202,500 42,835,161

503,130,000 - 41,927,500 461,202,500 42,835,161

Total 5,720,467,157 537,930,288 196,757,453 6,061,639,993 169,558,832

ix.	 During the year amount of Nu. 11,212,000 was received from the Royal Government of Bhutan 
being the balance fund for Rural Electrification works of Phobjikha and the same has been  
adjusted by issue of 11,212 Equity Shares (Face Value of Nu. 1000 each) to the Druk Holding 
and Investments, the Holding Company. 

x.	 Quantitative detail of purchase, generation and sales of power for the year is as under.

2013 2012

Units ( kWh) Amount Units ( kWh) Amount

Purchase 1,859.5893 1,151.6583 1,834.7047 1,158.75

Hydel 18.3925 15.2089

DG 0.0537 0.1770

Sale 1,841.4657 3,328.9535 1,769.5890 3,085.46
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37.	 The impact of adopting BAS

(i) Statement of financial position as at January 01, 2012.

Sub 
Notes Previous GAAP Adjustments 

under BAS
Reclassification 
or regrouping

As at January1, 
2012 (Restated)

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and 
equipment (a),

(c)
15,666,224,922 (650,456,844) - 15,015,768,078

Intangible assets - 142,943,443 - 142,943,443

Investments 300,000,000 - - 300,000,000

Work in progress- 
construction contracts (b) - 681,780,019 681,780,019

Trade & other 
receivables (d) - - 38,452,250 38,452,250

Loans and advances (d) - - 605,362,239 605,362,239

Total Non-current 
assets 15,966,224,922 174,266,618 643,814,489 16,784,306,029

Current assets

Inventories (c) 579,029,017 (208,429,740) - 370,599,277

Work in progress- 
construction contracts (b) - 33,801,957 - 33,801,957

Trade receivables (d) 181,439,070 - 599,509 182,038,579

Cash and cash 
equivalents (d) 3,215,297,008 - (1,212,069,807) 2,003,227,202

Short term loans and 
advances (d) 905,667,787 - (710,673,847) 194,993,940

Other current assets (d),
(e) 183,584,956 270,109,107 1,122,692,909 1,576,386,971

Total Current assets 5,065,017,840 95,481,324 (799,451,236) 4,361,047,927

Total Assets 21,031,242,762 269,747,942 (155,636,748) 21,145,353,956

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to 
shareholders

Ordinary shares 7,315,673,000 - - 7,315,673,000

Additional paid in 
capital (f) - 384,917,000 - 384,917,000
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Sub 
Notes Previous GAAP Adjustments 

under BAS
Reclassification 
or regrouping

As at January 1, 
2012 (Restated)

Capital reserve (f) (g) 35,256,383 57,190,617 - 92,447,000

Retained earnings / 
(deficit) (m) 2,788,594,120 426,608,397 - 3,215,202,517

Insurance Reserve 59,158,007 - - 59,158,007

RGoB Grant Reserve 
Account

(b), 
(f) 3,497,180,989 (3,497,180,989) - -

Total Equity 13,695,862,500 (2,628,464,976) - 11,067,397,524

Liabilities
Non-current 
liabilities
Borrowings (d) 4,757,367,762 - (154,041,547) 4,603,326,216

Deferred grants (h) - 568,555,081 - 568,555,081

Amounts due to 
customers for 
Construction contract

(b) - 2,217,726,951 2,217,726,951

Employee benefit 
liabilities (i) 331,540,505 (11,712,392) (98,379,007) 221,449,106

Deferred income tax 
liabilities (net) (j) - 191,813,272 - 191,813,272

Other non-current 
liabilities (d) - - 204,452,078 204,452,078

Total Non-current 
liabilities 5,088,908,267 2,966,382,913 (47,968,476) 8,007,322,704

Current liabilities

Borrowings (d) - - 154,041,547 154,041,547

Deferred grants (d),
(h) - 7,845,411 - 7,845,411

Amounts due to 
customers for 
Construction contract

(b) - 482,611,686 - 482,611,686

Trade payables (d) 790,803,234 - (17,671,908) 773,131,326

Employee benefit 
liabilities (d) - - 91,584,145 91,584,145

Income tax payable 
(net of advances) (d) 311,282,799 - (9,961,061) 301,321,738

Other current liabilities (k),
(d) 1,144,385,962 (254,214,286) (630,073,801) 260,097,875

Total Current 
liabilities 2,246,471,995 236,242,811 (412,081,078) 2,070,633,728

Total Liabilities 7,335,380,262 3,202,625,723 (460,049,554) 10,077,956,432
Total equity and 
liabilities 21,031,242,762 574,160,747 (460,049,554) 21,145,353,956
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(ii) Statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012.

Sub 
Notes Previous GAAP Adjustments 

under BAS
Reclassification 
or regrouping

As at 
December 
31, 2012 

(Restated)

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and 
equipment (a),

(c)

19,648,409,889 (2,931,264,562) 16,717,145,327

Intangible assets - 144,874,863 144,874,863

Investments 300,000,000 - 300,000,000

Work in progress- 
construction contracts (b) 2,912,449,387 2,912,449,387

Trade & other 
receivables (d) - 25,268,618 25,268,618

Long-term loans and 
advances (d) - 688,552,772 688,552,772

Total Non-current 
assets 19,948,409,889 126,059,688 713,821,390 20,788,290,967

Current assets

Inventories (c) 550,512,845 (233,610,914) 316,901,931

Work in progress- 
construction contracts (b) - 69,198,162 69,198,162

Trade receivables 91,855,686 (0) 91,855,686

Cash and cash 
equivalents (d) 1,947,613,989 - (1,160,456,649) 787,157,340

Short term loans and 
advances (d) 1,817,739,493 - (1,341,985,797) 475,753,696

Other current assets (d),
(e) 139,548,544 280,963,643 1,135,188,030 1,555,700,217

Total Current assets 4,547,270,556 116,550,891 (1,367,254,416) 3,296,567,032

Total Assets 24,495,680,445 242,610,579 (653,433,025) 24,084,857,998

EQUITY AND 
LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to 
shareholders

Ordinary shares 8,178,979,000 - 8,178,979,000

Capital reserve (g) 33,843,339 (33,843,339) -
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Sub 
Notes Previous GAAP Adjustments 

under BAS
Reclassification 
or regrouping

As at 
December
 31, 2012 

(Restated)
Retained earnings / 
(deficit) (m) 2,959,015,052 98,665,139.12 3,057,680,192

Group Investment 
Reserve (d) 231,297,822 - - 231,297,822

Transmission System Buy 
Back Reserve (d) 174,467,094 - - 174,467,094

Insurance Reserve 69,077,037 - 69,077,037

Depreciation Reserve (d) 19,928,312 - (19,928,312) -

Long Term Project 
Reserve 3,170,930,311 (3,170,930,311) -

RGoB Grant Reserve (f) 648,671,038 (648,671,038) -

Accumulated other 
comprehensive income 
(loss)

(i) - (87,086,068) (87,086,068)

Total Equity 15,486,209,006 (3,841,865,617) (19,928,312) 11,624,415,077

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 5,720,467,157 - (196,757,453) 5,523,709,705

Deferred grants (h) - 785,480,662 - 785,480,662

Amounts due to customers 
for Construction contract (b) - 3,190,864,152 3,190,864,152

Employee benefit liabilities (i) 465,705,032 (19,290,829) (129,779,608) 316,634,595

Deferred income tax 
liabilities (net) (j) - 247,989,811 247,989,811

Other non-current 
liabilities - - 433,107,098 433,107,098

Total Non-current 
liabilities 6,186,172,189 4,205,043,796 106,570,037 10,497,786,023

Current liabilities

Borrowings - - 196,757,453 196,757,453

Deferred grants (h) - 15,597,419 15,597,419

Amounts due to customers 
for Construction contract (b) - 210,480,544 210,480,544

Trade payables (d) 1,056,882,432 - (16,759,951) 1,040,122,481

Employee benefit liabilities (i) - - 129,779,608 129,779,608

Income tax payable (net of 
advance) (d) 619,343,766 - (523,267,429) 96,076,337

Other current liabilities (k),(d) 1,147,073,051 (315,594,935) (557,635,059) 273,843,057
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Sub 
Notes Previous GAAP Adjustments 

under BAS
Reclassification 
or regrouping

As at 
December 31, 

2012 (Restated)

Total Current liabilities 2,823,299,249 (89,516,972) (771,125,378) 1,962,656,899

Total Liabilities 9,009,471,439 4,115,526,825 (664,555,341) 12,460,442,922

Total equity and 
liabilities 24,495,680,445 273,661,208 (684,483,653) 24,084,857,999

(iii) Income Statement for the year ended December 31, 2012

Sub 
Notes

For the year ended December 31, 2012
Previous 

GAAP
BAS 

Adjustments
BAS 

(restated)
Revenue

Income from sale of electricity (e) 3,096,900,387 5,474,147 3,102,374,534

Income from construction contracts (b) 232,730,305 2,156,920,526 2,389,650,831

Wheeling charges 548,171,915 - 548,171,915

Other income (l) 262,473,180 (18,575,184) 243,897,996

Total Revenue 4,140,275,787 2,143,819,489 6,284,095,276

Expenditure

Purchase of electrical energy 1,158,991,280 - 1,158,991,280

Construction Material consumed and Sub-
Contracting Charges (b) - 2,172,409,846 2,172,409,846

Operation and maintenance expenses 185,787,094 - 185,787,094

Employee benefit expenses (i),(d) 708,176,635 (76,004,601) 632,172,034

Loss on foreign currency fluctuation (net) 5,141 - 5,141

Finance costs (d) 149,887,649 114,052 150,001,701

Depreciation and amortization expenses 638,523,255 - 638,523,255

Other expenses (e),(d) 86,584,030 (5,494,441) 81,089,589

Profit before income tax 1,212,320,701 52,794,633 1,265,115,334

Income tax expenses (j) 358,874,043

- Income tax 310,620,888 - 310,620,888

- deferred tax - 56,176,539 56,176,539

Profit for the year 901,699,813 (3,381,906) 898,317,907

Profit for the year 901,699,813 (3,381,906) 898,317,907

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Actuarial gains (losses) (i) - (87,086,068) (87,086,068)

Total comprehensive income for the year 901,699,813 (90,467,974) 811,231,839
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Notes 

(a)	 The impact of BAS on property, plant and equipments is as under:	

Particulars As at Jan 1, 2012 As at Dec 31, 2012

Balance of property, plant and equipment (previous 
GAAP) 15,666,224,922 19,648,409,889

Adjustments:

Reclassification of Computer software as Intangible 
assets (142,943,443) (144,874,863)

Funds received for construction of assets in India now 
adjusted against CWIP balance of those assets (236,437,000) (236,437,000)

Reclassification of construction contract assets to 
Construction contract receivable (618,750,086) (2,913,729,209)

Reclassification of inventory (refer note (c) below) 208,429,740 233,610,914

Capital advances now considered as part of CWIP 145,645,584 130,165,596

Prior period depreciation of 2012 adjusted in 2011 (6,401,638) -

Balance as at Jan 1, 2012 (restated) 15,015,768,079 16,717,145,327

(b)	The Company enters into contract for construction of assets on a cost plus margin basis. Under 
the previous GAAP, the Cost of construction is accumulated in CWIP (for transmission line 
assets) and Deposit works (for other assets). Funds received from customers are recognized 
in long term project reserve (for transmission line assets) and deposit works liability (for other 
assets). When construction is completed, the CWIP/deposit works and long term project reserve/
deposit works liability are knocked off. Only the margin arising thereof as indicated above was 
recognized in profit and loss account. Under BAS, revenue and costs of construction contracts 
has been recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income based on stage of completion 
method, which was determined as recoverable costs incurred on the contract during the year plus 
fixed mark up. As at Jan 1, 2012, the retained earnings have been increased by Nu. 14,209,499 
which was the short mark up (cumulative) on the contracts. Further, the accumulated CWIP/
Deposit works of Nu. 715,581,975 have been re-classified as Construction contracts (receivable) 
as under. 	

a) CWIP transferred from Property, plant and equipments 618,750,086 

b) Reclassification Deposit work receivable recognized already in previous year 33,801,957 

C) Short margin of Opening contracts 14,209,498 

C) Prior period construction contract income restated in 2011 from 2012 48,820,434 

715,581,975 
	
The Long-term project fund which was parked under RGoB Grant reserve account as on December 
31, 2011 amounting to Nu. 2,217,726,951 and Deposit works liability of Nu. 482,611,686 have been 
presented as Construction contracts (payable) in the Statement of Financial Position.	
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As on December 31, 2012, the accumulated CWIP/Deposit works of Nu. 2,981,647,548 have been 
re-classified to Construction contracts receivable as under:	

a) CWIP transferred from Property, plant and equipments	 2,913,729,209

b) Reclassification Deposit work receivable recognized already in previous year	 69,198,162

c) Cumulative impact of short and or excess margin of Opening and FY 2012	 (1,279,823)

2,981,647,548

As on December 31, 2012, Long-term project 
reserve lying in RGoB Grant reserve account 
as on December 31, 2011 of Nu. 3,190,864,152 
and Deposit works liability of Nu. 210,480,544 
have been presented as Construction contracts 
(payable) in the Statement of Financial Position. 
The revenue and costs for the year 2012 have 
been grossed up by Nu. 2,172,409,846 and also 
the contract revenue have been reduced by 
Nu. 15,489,320 for excess mark up recognized 
under previous GAAP.	

(c)	 Under the previous GAAP, capital 
spares and stand-by equipments were 
carried as inventories. However, under 
BAS, these have been considered as 
item of property, plant and equipment 
and hence reclassified from inventories 
to property, plant and equipments 
amounting to Nu. 208,429,740 and Nu. 
233,610,914 as at January 1, 2012 and 
December 31, 2012 respectively.

(d)	 Under BAS, many of the line items have 
been reclassified or regrouped to bring 
the consistency in the presentation. 
Further, under BAS, all the assets and 
liabilities are presented as current and 
non-current as required by BAS unlike 
previous GAAP. These reclassifications 
or regrouping did not have material 
impact on the financial statements.

(e)	 Under the previous GAAP, revenue 
from sale of electricity was recognized 
when electricity was consumed by the 
Customers and billing was done. Energy 
supplied and consumed as at reporting 
date for which billing was not done 
were not accrued (unbilled revenue). 

Under BAS, unbilled revenue has been 
accrued which has increased other 
current assets and retained earnings by 
Nu. 270,109,107 as at January 1, 2012. 
Accrual of unbilled revenue for the year 
2012 increased other current assets 
and revenue from electricity by Nu. 
280,963,643. However, on net basis, 
it has an impact of Nu. 10,854,536 
thereby increasing revenue and other 
current assets during the year 2012.	

Further, under previous GAAP, the 
Company had recognized electricity 
expense and corresponding revenue 
consumption (self billing). However, 
under BAS, self revenue recognition has 
been discontinued which reduced the 
revenue from electricity and electricity 
expense by Nu 5,380,389 during the 
year. This, however, did not have any 
impact on the profit for the year.	

(f)	 The Company has received grants for 
RE work from RGoB and recognized the 
funds received in RGoB Grant Reserve 
account under the previous GAAP. The 
RGoB Grants received in pursuant to 
the subsidiary financing arrangements 
from the year 2009 in accordance 
with the terms of arrangement thereof, 
are to be accounted for under BAS 
20. Accordingly, the following grants 
covered by the subsidiary financing 
arrangements: (i) RE - ADB IV; (ii) 
JICA RE; (iii) ADB V and (iv) JICA 2 
are accounted for as deferred grants 
under BAS. Other Grants or funds are 
accounted for as under:		
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RGoB Grant Reserve Account as per previous GAAP (December 31, 2011)        3,497,180,989 

Less:

ACB - Phubjikha treated as Capital Reserve as per the instruction of RGoB and 
accordingly, reclassified to Capital reserve from RGoB reserve grant account. (92,447,000)

Funds received for construction of assets in India now adjusted against CWIP 
balance of those assets (236,437,000)

Prior year income statement charge now recognized (as prior period adjustment) (4,677,038)

Reclassification of RGoB funds to additional paid in capital, being capital contribution 
by RGoB for construction of assets (384,917,000)

Reclassification of Deposit work liability for long term project from RGoB Grants now 
transferred to Deferred Grants (2,217,726,951)

Reclassification of RGoB Grants to deferred grants under BAS 20 (560,976,000)

Balance as at January 1, 2012 (restated)                            -   

RGoB Grant Reserve Account as per previous GAAP (December 31, 2012)           648,671,038 

Less:

Funds received for construction of assets in India now adjusted against CWIP 
balance of those assets (opening adjustment) (236,437,000)

Prior year income statement charge now recognized (as prior period adjustment) (4,677,038)

Reclassification of RGoB Grants to deferred grants under BAS 20 (407,557,000)

Balance as at December 31, 2012 (restated)          -

(g)	 The Capital reserves under previous GAAP consisting of donated assets (capital grants) of 
Nu. 15,424,492 as at January 1, 2012 and Nu.  14,011,448 which was reclassified to Deferred 
grants on the respective dates. It had also a balance of Nu. 19,831,891 as at January 1, 2012 
and December 31, 2012, which was unallocated amounts received for acquiring assets and 
was treated as prior period adjustment under BAS and hence taken to retained earnings 
thereby increasing retained earnings by that amount. During the year 2012, Nu. 14,011,508 
have been re-classified to Deferred Grants.

(h)	 As discussed above, RE grants are accounted for as Government grants under BAS and 
presented as deferred grants as below:	

Amount re-classed from RGoB Grant Reserve account 560,976,000

Amount re-classed from Capital reserve (as per note (g)) 15,424,492

Balance as at January 1, 2012 (restated) 576,400,492
During the year 2012, under BAS, deferred grants were amortized (refer Note l below for 
details). For further movement in deferred grants during the year 2012, refer Note 18.	
	

(i)	 Under previous GAAP, the Company used to provide for the liability towards Gratuity and 
Leave encashment based on management estimates. However, the Company has changed 
the accounting policy and measured its liability based on the actuarial valuation (refer note 
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33 on change in accounting policy for further details). The Company also decided a policy to 
take actuarial gains/ (losses) to equity through Other Comprehensive Income. This resulted 
in decrease of the Gratuity and leave liability by Nu. 11,712,392.	

During the year 2012, the actuarial valuation of Gratuity and Leave liability resulted into 
lower liability under BAS by Nu. 19,290,829. Further, during the year 2012, there was total 
reduction in employee cost of Nu. 76,004,601, which is further analyzed as under:

Further reduction in the liability during the year 2012 (19,290,829 - 
11,712,392) (7,578,437)

Reduction in cost due to recognition of actuarial loss in Other 
Comprehensive Income (87,086,068)

Increase in expense Gratuity expense on account of rectification of 
interest income (refer note (l) below) 11,133,714

Increase in Leave expense on account of rectification of Other 
miscellaneous income (refer note (l) below) 7,526,190

Net decrease in employee cost for the year 2012 (76,004,601)

(j)	 The Company did not recognize deferred taxes under previous GAAP. However, under BAS, 
deferred tax liability of Nu. 191,813,272 and Nu. 247,989,811 have been recognized as at 
January 1, 2012 and December 31, 2012 respectively. During the year 2012, additional 
deferred tax liability was recognized by Nu. 56,176,539 thereby increasing deferred tax 
liability and decreasing profit for the year.		

(k)	 The Company has made a provision for proposed dividend of Nu. 254,214,286 under the 
previous GAAP as at January 1, 2012. However, under BAS, proposed dividend is not an 
adjusting event and hence, the same has been reversed which decreased the liability by 
such amount as at January 1, 2012.	

During the year 2012, the Company has made provision for proposed dividend of Nu. 
315,594,935, the same has been reversed under BAS which decreased the liability by the 
same amount.

(l)	 During the year, following adjustments are made under BAS in other income thereby 
decreasing the other income by Nu. 18,575,184.	

i) Amortization of grants (recognition of deferred income on Grants) 6,432,367

ii) Interest on Fixed deposits wrongly recognized in Provision for Gratuity 
(FD for Gratuity liability) 11,133,714

iii) Prior period income adjusted retrospectively under BAS (43,667,454)

iv) Other miscellaneous income recognized 7,526,190

Total decrease in Other income (18,575,184)
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(m)	 The following is a summary of transition adjustments to the company’s retained earnings 
from previous GAAP to BAS:

Opening Balance of retained earnings (under previous GAAP) 2,788,594,120 

Add:

Accrual of unbilled revenue of 2011 [refer Note (e)] 270,109,107 

Reversal of proposed dividend of 2011 [refer Note (k)] 254,214,286 

Unallocated grant amount treated as prior period adjustment [refer Note (g)]             
19,831,891 

Prior year income statement charge of Grant now recognized as prior period 
adjustment [refer Note (f)]

              
4,677,038 

Other prior period income and expense incurred in 2012 adjusted in opening 
retained earnings

            
43,667,455 

Reversal of excess gratuity liability as at January 1, 2012 [refer Note (i)] 863,922

Reversal of excess Leave liability as at January 1, 2012 [refer Note (i)] 10,848,470

Short fall in mark up  to January 1, 2012 for construction contracts [refer 
Note (b)]

            
14,209,498 

Sub-total 3,407,015,789 

Less:

Recognition of deferred tax liability (191,813,272)

Balance as at January 1, 2012 (restated) 3,215,202,517 

Opening Balance of retained earnings (December 2012 -under previous 
GAAP) 2,959,015,052

Add:

Restatement adjustments in opening retained earnings 426,608,397

Income statement adjustments for the year 2012 (3,381,906)

Adjustment of proposed dividend in the year 2012 61,380,649

Bonus issue of shares during the year 2012 (385,942,000)

Balance as at December 31, 2012 (restated) 3,057,680,192

(n)	 Adjustments to the Statement of Cash flows 	

The transition from Previous GAAP to BAS had no significant impact on cash flows generated by the 
Company.	
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38.	 Subsequent events
i.	 The Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 

December 31, 2013 of Nu. 31.76 per share, amounting to a total dividend of Nu. 260,083,894 
which is subject to approval of the members in the General Meeting to be held on April 14, 
2014.  These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

ii.	 The Board of Directors has proposed an amount of Nu. 510,535,051 as transfer to GIR for the 
financial year ended December 31, 2013 as part of the GIR policy of the Group, which is subject 
to approval of the members in the General Meeting to be held on April 14, 2014. These financial 
statements do not reflect this transfer.

iii.	 In line with the Insurance reserve policy of the Company, the Board of Directors has proposed 
an amount of Nu   5,037,470 to be transferred to Insurance Reserve for the financial year ended 
December 31, 2013, which is calculated at 0.4% on the gross asset additions during the year. 
This is subject to approval of the members in the General Meeting to be held on April 14, 2014 
and these financial statements do not reflect this transfer.

iv.	 A case has been filed against the Company on the dispute arising out of a contractual issue by 
one of the supplier. The impact of the claim if any arising out of this dispute shall be determined 
on the conclusion of the proceeding. The amount involved is to the tune of Nu 61 million.

Signatures to ‘Notes 1 to 38’ of the Financial Statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Annexure to Auditor’s Report

Minimum Audit Requirement 2013
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Financial highlights of operations during 2013

Exhibit to the Annexure




